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Design concept of the annual report

In addition to the provision of the quality land registration and search

services to the public, the Land Registry attaches great importance to social
responsibility and strives to uphold a high standard of corporate citizenship.
The environmental-friendly elements of the whole layout aim to project the green
culture of sustainability of the department.
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No. of land documents
delivered for registration:

928,767

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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No. of searches of land
registers:

9,644,216
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— @™ No. of imaged copies Usage of IRIS Online Services:
and photocopies of land = 1)
records supplied: 93 /0

838,871

] EFaMEERREAER: ] LM INENREFTM
ﬁ Usage of e-Memorial Form: —1=| BEXRE
——T— 0 — Launched two enhanced
DDD >65 /0 versions of e-Memorial Form
(HBRIDRGTAME ﬂ EFUREEZTMER:
HHE ¥R R4S £ RBI B IR No. of owners’
No. of visits to online versions —= corporations registered:
of the Street Index and New
Territories Lot/Address Cross 21 3

Reference Table:

28,648 &
115,206 0Qpo ERMEREADEAN:

No. of mainland and
overseas visitors received:

I 41
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A\ 2017FIAHREHRB R EZFMIE S
LY/ The Secretary for the Civil Service’s Commendation Award Scheme 2017
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2017 [HHEF B B 52 7T 22 Q [ERBA A 1% F= =T 5t &
The Ombudsman’s Awards 2017 \ ERB Manpower Developer Award

) EREMERIRR AN bk 2 4218 Iz i

Four international/local Award of 10 Years Plus Caring
competition awards for the Land Organisation Logo

Reqistry Trading Fund Annual

Report 2015/16
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AR 536 1R EFXRBHE:

78 MLBD P2 AR S AR R No. of commendations:
FIEMMAEER

Performance targets: 44

Exceeded all targets
set in our performance
pledges

EHEIER ®FIER :
No. of suggestions: No. of complaints:

8 26
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IT MANAGEMENT
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
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No. of training days:

>2,240

’BE AR

No. of employees:

287

TEHEEMR
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

BREARBHA -

No. of charity programmes:

4

ELASHE:

No. of volunteer activities:

22

BERPERELIRERBAHE

No. of secondary and tertiary students received:

114
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SIS

4 il
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[4R & S & 51 & #c T MR AR R E R
WEBEANRAEE : ME B RE
No. of major Adoption of responsive web

enhancements to IRIS:

10

design for the Land Registry
website
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MESSAGE FROM THE LAND REGISTRAR
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| am pleased to present the report of the Land Registry
Trading Fund for the financial year ending 31 March 2018.

Notwithstanding the ongoing implementation and further
tightening of property market demand-side management
measures, including a 15% stamp duty levy on first-time
homebuyers purchasing multiple flats in one go in April
and a new round of measures on property mortgage in
May, Hong Kong’s property market in 2017 was generally
buoyant, supported by rising confidence in economic
growth, persistent low interest rates, and the still-tight
demand-supply balance of flats.

As compared to 2016/17, the total number of documents
registered and searches of land registers increased by
12.8% and 6.1% respectively. Our business turnover and
profit registered an increase of 20% to $490.7 million and
211.9% to $131.8 million respectively, mainly due to an
increase in business volume. The Land Registry Trading
Fund achieved a financial return on fixed assets of 38.1%
in 2017/18.

Our commitment to providing quality service and exploring
new business for our customers plays a significant role in
the overall success of the business. During the year, we
exceeded all the targets set in our performance pledges
and implemented various functional enhancements to our
IRIS Online Services.
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As for new business, we launched the e-Alert Service for
Authorised Institutions (Als) under the Banking Ordinance
(Cap. 155) in February 2017. With the consent of the
relevant property owners, the Als subscribing to the
Service will receive electronic notifications from us when
further charge/mortgage documents in respect of the
properties mortgaged to the Als concerned are lodged
for registration in the Land Registry. In order to provide
greater security and convenience to the Als for submission
of service applications for the Service as well as to
increase the operational efficiency of both the Als and the
Land Registry, we plan to implement an e-channel for the
Service by two phases in 2019 and 2020 respectively.

Meanwhile, we have been making continuous efforts

in engaging stakeholders for the early implementation

of title registration system in Hong Kong. During the
year, we continued to discuss and exchange views with
stakeholders on the “new land first” proposal and the
outstanding issues concerning conversion under the
proposed Two-Stage Conversion Mechanism. We also
shared with them our interim findings from the study of
the latest developments regarding the title registration
legislations and good practices adopted in some overseas
jurisdictions with common law background. While
continuing the efforts to resolve the outstanding issues on
conversion with the stakeholders and further pursue the
“new land first” proposal, we will complete the overseas
jurisdiction study with a view to enhance our proposals on
amendments to the Land Titles Ordinance.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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MESSAGE FROM THE LAND REGISTRAR

Despite positive market sentiment in the near term, gradual
improvement in local housing supply, together with the
potential impact of the Federal Reserve’s balance sheet
reduction and further US rate hikes, will pose increasing
adjustment pressures on the residential property

market over time. Although our business performance

is susceptible to the volatility of the property market
conditions, we will keep in view the financial position,
take measures to contain expenditures and explore new
business opportunities to meet our customers’ needs.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to thank our colleagues
for their hard work and our partners and customers for
their valuable support. | am confident that with continued
dedication and support from all, we will yield fruitful results
in the coming year.

Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP
Land Registrar
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
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THE LAND REGISTRY AT A GLANCE

The Land Registry Trading Fund

In August 1993, the Land Registry was established as
one of Hong Kong's first Trading Fund Departments. The
trading fund concept is an approach to public financing
designed to encourage greater focus on improving
services and responding to customer needs. The Land
Registrar is the General Manager of the Land Registry
Trading Fund.

Under the trading fund model, the Land Registry remains
a public agency but is responsible for its own finances
and must meet its expenditure from the income derived
from fees and charges for the services that it provides.
The Trading Fund may retain profits to invest for service
improvements. In particular, it has autonomy over capital
investment projects that will support its services and has
flexibility to redeploy staff to respond to the service needs
of customers.

The Trading Fund’s Annual Report and the financial
statements certified by the Director of Audit must be
tabled in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region each year.
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Vision, Mission, Values and Functions

Our Vision
To be the best in all that we do.

Our Mission

N To ensure secure, customer friendly land registration
and information services.

N To develop our human resources, information
technology and service environment so as to ensure
improvement in service quality and value to our
customers.

N To advocate reform of Hong Kong’s land registration
system through introduction of title registration.

Our Values

Integrity — to customers, partners and colleagues,
we observe the highest ethical
standards.

Excellence — we aim to excel in all that we do.

Respect — we show respect and trust to our
customers, partners and colleagues.

Learning — we learn constantly from each other,

from our partners, customers and
comparable organisations elsewhere
how to provide better services to the
community.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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THE LAND REGISTRY AT A GLANCE

Our Value to Hong Kong

®

®

Around half of all Hong Kong families are registered
property owners.

Banks and financial institutions loaned about
HK$2,795 billion as at March 2018 against the
security of registered land and property.

Over five million searches of registered information
took place in 2017/18.

Over 100 Government departments and agencies use
the Land Registry’s information for purposes ranging
from planning studies to law enforcement.

Registered information traces back to 1844, providing
resources on the economic and social history of Hong
Kong.

Functions

The Land Registry’s main functions are to:

A

administer a land registration system by maintaining
a land register and related land records under the
Land Registration Ordinance (Cap. 128) (LRO) and its
regulations;

provide the public with facilities for search of the land
register and other land records;

provide Government departments and agencies with
property information; and

process applications for incorporation of owners
under the Building Management Ordinance (Cap.
344) (BMO).
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= b 5 1 BT 0 48 4% 22 48 Bl (B £201843H31H)
Organisation Chart of the Land Registry (as at 31 March 2018)

X L 8 5% B T AR 75
Deeds Registration &

Departmental
Services Branch

T i 5 R A 3R
Registry Manager

@

-

THEMERR
Land Registrar

Bl & JE 2 A
Deputy Principal
Solicitor

EREBHH

Legal Services Branch

B R

Financial
Services Branch

KR

Business Manager

ERTHAMREEEES
THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Registration Services Division

& it K &6 P9 AR 75 =B
Search & Departmental
Services Division

B8 RE PR
Management & Customer
Services Division

X HE 1T A6

Title Registration Operation Division

B B R A
Information Technology
Management Division

& 7% 8P

General Support Services Division

ARERE

Legal Services Division

81 75 B

Financial Services Division

BB #ERERE
Project Development Division
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&2l + 3t 5 M BT 42 32 (R M AR 7%5)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Registration Services

&2l b 5 1M B 48 I8 (& M R 3P P AR 7%)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Search & Departmental Services

2 3 R KR (B REFRE)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Management & Customer Services

B T fEgE

BT E(E (T

Deputy Registry Managers/

Chief Executive Officer (Title Registration)

S €Y S
Senior Systems Managers

B EEWSE
Departmental Secretary

= AR 72 B

Senior Solicitors

EIE S SE

Deputy Business Manager

2l EMmELE(EREER)
Deputy Registry Manager/
Project Development
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Management Structure

N Headed by the Land Registrar, the Land Registry is
organised into three functional branches each led by
a directorate officer.

N The departmental grade of Land Registration Officer
forms the backbone of the Land Registry overseeing
various operational functions and the provision of
public services.

W The Land Registry is also supported by legal, financial
and IT professionals and general grades staff.

Branch and Division

Deeds Registration and Departmental Services
Branch

Registration Services Division

N To provide services for registration of documents
affecting land under the LRO.

Search and Departmental Services Division

W To provide search services; to handle applications for
registration of owners’ corporations; and to provide
reports on title to Government departments.

Management and Customer Services Division

N To manage and develop the Land Registration
Officer grade; to plan and deliver customer services
and respond to their needs; and to develop human
resources through training and development
programmes to meet the business needs of the Land
Registry.

Title Registration Operation Division

W To design operational processes, procedures and
forms for the Title Registration System (TRS); and
to plan and implement publicity and education
programmes.

N To provide administrative support in the preparation
for the implementation of the TRS and secretariat
support to major committees concerning the Land
Titles Ordinance (LTO).

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Registration Services Division
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THE LAND REGISTRY AT A GLANCE

Information Technology Management Division

W To plan, develop, implement and manage IT systems
and services; and to provide IT support for the
department.

General Support Services Division

N To plan, manage and review human resources, office
accommodation and administrative systems; and to
provide general support services to the department.

Legal Services Branch
Legal Services Division

W To provide legal advisory and support services
relating to the LRO and the work of the department.

W To provide legal advisory and support services in
the preparation for the implementation of the LTO; to
conduct review of the enacted LTO; and to prepare
the Land Titles (Amendment) Bill (LT(A)B).

Financial Services Branch
Financial Services Division

W To prepare and control budgets and manage financial
accounts; to evaluate costing, fees and charges; to
review accounting procedures and financial systems;
and to manage departmental supplies and stores.

Project Development Division

W To plan and implement new initiatives for service
improvement.

s 3E T

E
I

T
E LAND =

EIRREF RS AL
Management &
5 R 25 P9 AR 7 Customer Services Division
Search & Departmental
Services Division
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Who’s Who in the Land Registry

THEAMEERREREE
The Land Registrar and Branch Heads

NCEAT s
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ot 1

RELZL JPAFE#T Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP
(T MERR) (Land Registrar)
TRBB L (LM LE) Mrs Amy FONG (Registry Manager)
FERELAE (R S EEE) Mr Joseph HUI (Deputy Principal Solicitor)
(£ BEA20185F1A2H) (With effect from 2 January 2018)
FRL T (EBHRIE) Ms Vivian LEE (Business Manager)

ERTHAMREEEES
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B2 49 5F 8 K 50 P9 AR 7%

Deeds Registration and Departmental Services Branch

FRPEZ L (L EMELIE)  Mrs Amy FONG (Registry Manager)
EEREAE (BT aEMEKIE) Mr Kenneth POON (Deputy Registry Manager)
(£ HH A2018F1H2R8) (With effect from 2 January 2018)
BB (Bt MERIE) Mr Francis WAN (Deputy Registry Manager)
MADRELZ T (Bl L MEE A IE) Mrs Cindy LAM (Deputy Registry Manager)
RELLeE (BT HTMERRE) Mr W. C. YUEN (Deputy Registry Manager)

Slojol~Jofo )~

ERHLT (SR EGKIE) Ms Emily FOK (Senior Systems Manager)

BEErE(BITHRED Miss Shirley KO (Chief Executive Officer)

HHLOBL L (BREFLEIE) Ms Ada TSE (Senior Systems Manager)

TEELEA (B T iR &IE) Mr K. F. PANG (Deputy Registry Manager)
0 BEARLEEFMIEFWE) Mr Jack LAl (Departmental Secretary)
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Legal Services Branch

HEEALAE(BIEERED Mr Joseph HUI (Deputy Principal Solicitor)
(£ M HHE A20185F1H2H) (With effect from 2 January 2018)
EEE T (S REE) Ms Shirley LEE (Senior Solicitor)
BR/NES 22 4 (72 R 72 B Miss Urania CHAN (Senior Solicitor)
(£ BEHA2017F11 A27H) (With effect from 27 November 2017)
&g 2+ (B M ER) Ms Teresa YAU (Senior Solicitor)
BEELLT(SHEM) Ms Queenie KIU (Senior Solicitor)
ﬂ FEREBFZ L (ERE) Ms Stephanie WAN (Senior Solicitor)

EETEMERLEEES
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Br R R

Financial Services Branch

PRI (EBKRE) Ms Vivian LEE (Business Manager)
EERTH (AT mESIE) Miss Fion LI (Deputy Registry Manager)
BEP LT (BIERELRE) Ms Peggy WONG (Deputy Business Manager)
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TREAR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Framework

The Land Registry strives to achieve the best in
corporate governance. To this end, we have established
performance standards based on the cornerstones of
accountability, integrity and transparency.

Accountability

The Land Registry is accountable to the Development
Bureau (DEVB) and the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau (FSTB) for its business and financial performance
respectively. We submit a medium range corporate-cum-
annual business plan to the two Bureaux for approval
each year. The corporate plan sets out the blueprint for
the department’s development in the next five years, while
the business plan serves as the basis against which our
annual performance is evaluated. We meet regularly with
the DEVB to review our business performance. The DEVB
also provides policy steer for our work. In addition, we
maintain regular liaison with the FSTB, which monitors our
financial performance.

Integrity

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) (TFO),
we have the flexibility to respond to service needs and
enhance operational efficiency through autonomy in capital
investment and the use of resources. Underpinning this
flexibility is the duty to uphold integrity in discharging
our responsibilities. All Land Registry staff conduct
daily business in a proper manner in compliance with
departmental guidelines and the relevant Government
rules and regulations. The Registry Manager is the
Ethics Officer of the Land Registry overseeing integrity
management work in the department. Apart from
organising training courses and workshops, relevant
guidelines and circulars on integrity management are
promulgated and re-circulated to staff regularly to raise
their awareness in this regard.
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Transparency

The Land Registry’s operation is also guided by the
principle of transparency. As provided under the TFO, the
Trading Fund’s annual report together with the financial
statements audited by the Director of Audit is required to
be tabled in the Legislative Council each year. To help
keep the public apprised of our work and the situation
in the property market, we publish statistics on land
registration and search on a monthly basis.

We maintain close contact with our customers of the
private and public sectors through our regular Customer
Liaison Group meetings.

Performance Pledges

As part of our continuing commitment to improving

the quality and efficiency of services, we have been
conducting review of our performance pledges annually
since the establishment of the Trading Fund in 1993.

In 2017/18, we exceeded all the targets set in our
performance pledges. In particular, we enhanced the
service standards for supply of certified copies of land
registers and imaged copies without oversize plans over
the counter from 40 minutes to 35 minutes; and telephone
enquiry services for voice mail left during office hours from
return calls within 60 minutes to 40 minutes. Annex | (a)
sets out the pledges and our performance for the year. In
2018/19, we will implement enhanced performance targets
for amendment of registered data for both simple cases
and complicated cases. The new set of performance
pledges for 2018/19 is at Annex | (b).

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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ZFER Customer Feedback

E2017/18FE AR BEBEF IR In 2017/18, the Land Registry received 44 commendations
AR - BRI REERF - 2K{Z  and 8 suggestions through various channels, including
MEHETFRBEEEAEZTFER  our customer service hotline, the Land Registry website,

HR8IEEZ ° comment cards, letters and emails.
EEFRERE
Customer Satisfaction Rate
Bkt
Per Cent
100 942 o1
896 w7
80
7 7 7
60
40
b b b
20
8.1 55 58 6.3 08
. N7 22 00 00 N 00 00 0.0 N7 04 08 04 -
Year
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
v FEEWME WE —f% TWE IEBTHE
Very Satisfied Satisfied Average Dissatisfied Very Dissatisfied

g ARIMEEREAIBEER BREENEDXHFEMAETFR100% °
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

AN s BRI AR ERE There were also 26 complaints received by us or referred
S8 B D B T SR PTEE /) 26 IH IR EF o to us by other Government offices. All the suggestions
FTEREZZMEFHEEMNFRLER  and complaints were promptly addressed and fully

TR TR o responded to.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Citizenship

The Land Registry attaches great importance to social
responsibility and strives to uphold a high standard of
corporate citizenship. Our commitment is demonstrated
through our efforts in seven main areas:

Serving the Community

Staff have all along been encouraged to contribute their
own time to organise and participate in volunteer activities
and community programmes. Since 2005, the Land
Registry Volunteer Team has been co-operating with some
ten other Government departments to run a “Crossover
Volunteer Project” programme. In 2017/18, the Volunteer
Team organised 22 volunteer activities for the elderly.

In addition, the Land Registrar and volunteers of the Land
Registry visited elderly households and families in need
in Kowloon City District and Kwai Tsing District under the
“Celebrations for All” project on 21 May 2017 and 22 May
2017 respectively. Gift packs were distributed to share
the joy of the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and to promote
the important messages of unity, inclusiveness and care
in our society.
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In recognition of our dedication and ongoing commitment
in serving the community, the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service awarded the “Ten Years Plus Caring Organisation”
logo to the Land Registry in March 2018.

BHZEZTE

BN ETEZEY  TXBE
TRERAZETREAZEA -

Participating in Charity Activities

We are dedicated to promoting charity activities by
encouraging staff and their families to participate in charity
events.

E2017/18FE * AEREL2MER
TERPNBTERESEY > BEIA
meERAI-TBEFEIRIAZETT
E[HIRAB]- ZMMERLME
HNEBERNLNES BEIEIEF
BREMNFEE — BLLE| BEBER
ANBEZSBERATEEHIRE
B RENEREE -

ERTHAMREEEES

In 2017/18, our staff participated in a variety of charity
events organised by the Community Chest, including the
Dress Casual Day, Love Teeth Day and Skip Lunch Day.
We also continued to support fund raising for “Seeing is
Believing” — Orbis, the Hong Kong Paralympic Committee
and Sports Association for the Physically Disabled and
the Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society through joining the
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Eliminating Discrimination and Promoting Friendly
Workplace

We are committed to eliminating discrimination (including
sex, disability, family status and race) in employment and
promoting equal opportunities for all staff members.

In 2017/18, we had a total of 21 staff members with
disabilities, representing 3.6% of the total strength of the
Land Registry. We would provide technical aids, where
necessary for staff members with disabilities to facilitate
their performance of duties.

We also support the Government’s policy on gender
mainstreaming. The Departmental Secretary has been
designated as the General Focal Point who helps

raise awareness and understanding of gender-related
issues within the department. Besides, in support of
the Government’s breastfeeding friendly premises and
workplace policies, we have provided a breastfeeding
friendly environment for both female members of the
public whilst they are visiting our offices and female
staff members who wish to continue breastfeeding after
returning to work. Internal guidelines have been formulated
for observance by staff members. Besides, lactation
facilities are provided to our female staff members.

We also continued to provide placement opportunities for
people in need through participating in the Social Welfare
Department’s Sunnyway Programme and the Civil Service
Bureau’s Internship Scheme for Students with Disabilities.

For promoting job opportunities for the socially
disadvantaged groups, we continued to invite social
enterprises to bid for our office cleaning service contract
and catering service contract for our departmental function
during Christmas.
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Caring for Employees

As a caring employer, we strive to maintain a healthy
workforce. In 2017/18, we organised a total of 27
seminars for staff on relevant subjects, including first
aid, prevention of upper and lower limbs disorders and
musculoskeletal disorders, health tips on the use of
display screen equipment, stress management, handling
of workplace violence, understanding and responding to
verbal violence, indoor air quality and occupational health.
We also provided counseling services through external
specialists to assist staff facing work-related or personal
issues.

Besides, we continued to enhance staff awareness in
maintaining work-life balance and a healthy lifestyle
through departmental publications, seminars, sports
events, interest classes and outings organised by the Staff
Recreation Club for staff and their family members.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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EBRREE Promoting Green Management

REBMNDESHRRERE - WHEREFT We are committed to promoting green management

SHEEBNBEEEMNARAREL > and ensuring that our business and daily operations are

BB EREUT AN RS 16 conducted in an environmentally responsible manner. In
this regard, we have taken the following measures:

N FIERREK  MEAFIITE N formulated an environmental policy and set out key
WEEHE: areas for actions;

N AMREREERES CUEETE N promulgated green housekeeping guidelines for
SF observance by staff;

N THIESERAZTHITIRIARE W conducted regular environmental audit and surprise
BMRENE - FETHERT checks to various offices to sustain the momentum
RIR in environmental protection;

N BEETICRADER]TEYWH N  continued our drive in 4-Rs (i.e. reduce, reuse,

RITERFHEIRIBEREAIN recycle and replace) and efficient use of energy and
IRIRIER - WA BE AL R resources;
B

N BERREREMN®E  HEMEE N expanded the scope of green procurement through
ERREEOY M - AR BRI increasing the number of purchase items that contain
NEIF R E P EREURIR M environmentally friendly features and requiring the
% BB REERER D office cleaning contractor to adopt a number of green
FA7K FNBE R OB FE practices, including reduction of water and energy

consumption in their operation as far as practicable;
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N ZEBRHPANCEIBI) WET N promoted green awareness among staff by

EERRES SHBRLOED - publicising messages on waste reduction and
BIRAE SR ERSAR recycling, energy conservation and anti-pollution
7R through departmental staff magazine;
N BT XHaIA~Ems e N implemented double-sided printing of land document
copies;

N EUYEATHERNEAB N used recycled paper or the blank side of used paper
EHRRIGEANZEDER for printing and photocopying as far as practicable;
ok HETY R R ED

N HHEENBRT  REEAEBEHN N installed lighting motion sensors in the officers’

EFRLZEaERERPRE - rooms, where appropriate, to reduce energy
LUR D REVRSE R LA K consumption; and
N 2EAEEMR]IRMEOI4E N participated in the “Green Bottle Workplace”
MFIERIGTE - &G T i programme organised by the Green Earth and
REBRITHREEFEH2H% not providing bottled water when holding events/
IR B R OK o activities/meetings at our offices.
NBEANTA B AR E &4 uh 8 B The Controlling Officer’s Environmental Report 2017 with
(P01I7TFEEH ABRIRIHE) T  detailed environmental performance is available on the
BEMORRKE - Land Registry website.

SE7TF Y FEENTEEE-—RNEBF S HHBERHKEEK-
Secondary school students participating in the Job Shadow Day 2017 brought their own water bottles for refilling drinking water
during their 1-day work attachment.

ERTHAMREEEES
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Promoting Occupational Safety and Health in the

Workplace

We attach great importance to the occupational safety and
health of staff. Since 1997, we have set up a departmental
Safety Management Committee to formulate and
implement departmental policy on occupational safety and
health. We have promulgated comprehensive guidelines
and procedures on occupational safety and provided
our staff with ergonomic office furniture and equipment

to promote occupational
health. In 2017/18, we
procured a number

of occupational safety
and health equipment,
including footrests,
backrests, waist pads,
keyboard wrist rest pads,
mouse pads (containing
wrist pad) and anti-
glare filters for computer
monitors, for our staff. To
enhance staff awareness,
we have made use of our
Staff Magazine to provide
useful information and tips
on occupational safety
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and health on a regular basis. Besides, regular inspections
are conducted to ensure that the workplace is free from

safety hazards.

In addition, we have participated in the

Indoor Air Quality (IAQ) Certification Scheme organised by
the Environmental Protection Department since 2003 and
all our offices have achieved the “Good” Class under the

Scheme in 2017.
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NRHABE Public Education

EAKREAZBHEESHH —E69 > As part of our public education activities, the Land Registry

RMEELETPENE FRKAME  has continued its efforts to introduce its services and

o ZHERL2BAENEFR the land registration system in Hong Kong to the school

B MORMEBRNBARENIR  community by delivering presentations and conducting

BRMEEN L FMHE - guided tours to our Customer Centre for secondary and
tertiary students.

W mam BN IRWEE e
CLAP fot Youth @ JC
ARTE BERHMNER

KE2NT7IBEEeHE 8K A visit to the Land Registry was arranged for the students
FEI T ERAIS-BAEMA]  of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Chen Zao Men College
EE)  R2017F 4R L HERE =L in April 2017 under the CLAP for Youth @ JC of “Career
PRKRAPEMNELEREARRE - N Explorer — Government Departments” Programme. In
2N THAKESKEHEZHAERS July 2017, students of the Church of Christ in China Fong
AWM EMES -[EAFRM  Yun Wah Secondary School visited the Land Registry

MZ 2] WHR2017F7ALHEHE  under the School Promotion Programme on “Know More
EBHe R BERENEEL 2 about Government Service” jointly organised by the Civil
R o Service Bureau and the Education Bureau.

A - IR 2017F6 A AF B HE  In addition, a visit was arranged for the Legal Studies

¥HRBFER(BPOR)AARER  students of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational

RELELZHIGFAE - SREBAY  Education (Tuen Mun) in June 2017. The feedback from

2B EHHRERY - WAREA I the participants of the visits was positive. They showed

EA L4 82 & RX B R o great interest in our work as well as the land records of
the Land Registry.

ERTHAMREEEES
THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG



RIXFBEFE R AEEKTH
RAXELET B Z BB E T FAE
RPBEERERTIEZFERIN
F2EARBARRILARIER
REBEBRERELNIReER

\

MAFECBSEHRER] UX
BELFMRMERS o /£ LR EE
BT Z#HERERMEALE
Pt E 4 5 R R 2017F5 A7 A F|
MARZEIEAR - WA EHsE
MEEEEER  TEHLME—X
WNEITERBMALIE SRBEEE
MEEETE  ESEEILIENE
5 B MBEERAMEKE KK
B E % o

ARG E

megEE
AEEEEREGEHDEE
5 3 RO L R R 43R R
21 o

DNREE
FREGEBBERAZRELY &
NBIRBBARE N RG LB B
T EMBIENERIER -

EREEES
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In support of nurturing our younger generation, besides
partnering with the Junior Achievement Hong Kong for
the tenth year to organise the Job Shadow Day, we
participated in the “Life Buddies Mentoring Scheme —
Job Tasting Programmes” launched by the Policy and
Project Co-ordination Unit of the Chief Secretary for
Administration’s Private Office to support upward mobility
of youth. Under the respective programmes, students
from the Holy Family Canossian College and the True Light
Girls’ College were guided by Land Registration Officers
as their mentors to work for one day in various work units
in the Land Registry in May and July 2017 respectively.
Through the work attachments, the students had a

taste of real- \
life work in the o Lkl i
Land Registry =
which helped
broaden their
exposure and
facilitated
their career
planning.

Future Plan

Green Management

We will continue to promote a “green office” environment
and explore opportunities for reducing consumption of
energy and paper.

Public Education

We will continue with our public education activities to raise
public understanding of the services of the Land Registry
and the development of the land registration system in
Hong Kong.
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AR 7% & E AE
SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

I 4 b SO B Registration of Land Documents

FET ARSI ERAEMN N E$EE  Documents affecting land are delivered to our Customer
B & EBENEPIRGHOIHIEEM o Centre at Queensway Government Offices for registration.

F2017/18F & » = X Mey Lt In 2017/18, 528,767 land documents were delivered for
X #£528,76717 © B2016/174 E  registration, representing an increase of 12.8% when
#IN12.8% o compared with 2016/17.

KA L B
No. of Land Documents Delivered for Registration
28

No.
900,000

800,000

700,000

600,000
505,894 528,767

500,000

468,630
424,634 445,889
400,000 T
300,000 ER

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18  Year

FRWIHETEXHERBEEE  Major types of documents received include sale and

FEEAN - BERY - BB purchase agreements (SPAs), assignments, mortgages/

BN REEEIEE B 2 F U legal charges and receipts/discharges/releases which

B X HREMTI% ° collectively accounted for 79% of all documents received
during the year.
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2017/185F & 2% 3 ot it 49 & 3t 3244 28 5l
Distribution of Land Documents Lodged for Registration in 2017/18

108,021 (20.4%) 89,379 (16.9%)
f\tﬁ@ers .%ae and Purchase Agiifnﬁ

4,307 (0.8%) 108,158 (20.5%)

A HEZY

Leases/Tenancy Agreements Assignments

108,350 (205

RH R BT

Receipts/Discharges/Releases

110,552 (20.9%)

218, E R
Mortgages/Legal Charges

F2017T18FEXRAMMAMMBEEFEEAN+Y  FTEEFEECHNTEHMNMAE S FIE63,385
7 (B EFIEIN2.7%) K5,815.8318 7T (B EF1ENN16.9%) - — RS EEAYNE S 2 LY

MERXEBRANEZRIER

Among the SPAs of all building units delivered for registration in 2017/18, the number of SPAs of
residential units and its total consideration were 63,385 (+2.7% from last year) and $581,583 million
(+16.9% from last year) respectively. The number of these agreements is generally regarded as a
key indicator of the level of activity in the property market.

ERTHAMREEEES
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SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

ZRAMNEERFEESNRENE A
No. and Consideration of Sale and Purchase Agreements of Residential Units
Delivered for Registration

700,000
581,583
600,000
480,427 497,640
500,000
345,292
400,000
273,560
300,000
200,000 63.385
45,193 69,787 61,701 ’
100,000 */*\45*4?:5/*—*
0 FE
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Year
* = No. . £ % (B 8% 7T) Consideration (HK$ million)

g LASFEFTUTEEREEREE AMAMEL2ERERMEEHEMETHEEEE  RIFEMAEMLEERSAE
WAL EFEEE -

Note: The statistics do not include sales of units under the Home Ownership Scheme, the Private Sector Participation Scheme
and the Tenants Purchase Scheme unless the premium of the unit concerned has been paid after the sale restriction
period.

H2017/18FE » RZHEEEBFANXRFSREN 5008 21,0008 B L2 - FRXH
SEHEBB1,000BEB TNEEEFIZAI@EEMN -

The majority of the transactions in residential units in 2017/18 were within the consideration range
of five to ten million Hong Kong dollars. There was a significant increase in transactions in 2017/18
with consideration of more than ten million Hong Kong dollars.
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REFIENEERFEESNRY
No. of Sale & Purchase Agreements of Residential Units by Range of Consideration

RE
No.
30,000
N7
25,000
NF
4
20,000 Y
v YF
15,000 ~ ¥
B 7
10,000 5 N
5,000 N
YTy | I
DM 12 D72 2ELR3 KEi) 5Z 510 10E 2720 20230 3084 L
Less than 1 1tolessthan2  2tolessthan3  3tolessthan5 5tolessthan 10 10toless than20 20 to less than 30 30 or over

$EHHE (A8HBIL) Range of Consideration (HK$ million)

S 2015/16 S 2016/17 % 2017/18

THEIE

Range of Consideration 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

(BB%ET)

(HK$ million) = ZNo. % = ENo. V.l = HNo.
DI Less than 1 329 0.7 279 0.5 282
12 D2 1 to less than 2 1,399 3.1 1,356 2.2 1,075
2% L3 2 to less than 3 3,486 7.7 4,451 7.2 2,882
32 DW5 3 to less than 5 15,536 342 21,682 351 IRYAIL
5% L0 5 to less than 10 18,487 407 24,046 KieKoll 28,081
102 2120 10 to less than 20 4,249 9.4 6,814 11.0 PR
20% 130 20 to less than 30 989 2.2 1,552 25 2,190
308k LA £ 30 or over 960 2.1 1,521 25 1,978
B Total 45,435 100.0 61,701 100.0 BGEIRELS

F ARIEEIAIRER BEANES REFEMAEE T ER100% °
Note: Figures in percentage for individual items may not add up to 100% due to rounding.
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£2017/18F E - B H L & 52
MRE UEREHEIHEENEE
BESAMEENANBEE DR B
5,644,216°R (B X F 1L MN6.1%) &

838,87117 (B EF 12 1112.2%) °

EHLIHECMRENREHLIMLCHENERERER AR DD
No. of Searches of Land Registers & Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land
Records Supplied

RE

No.
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000

1,000,000

0

5,172,590

4,670,533

AR 7% & E AE
SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

Search Services

Land records are kept by the Land Registry for the
purpose of providing an information platform on property
ownership to facilitate property transactions.

In 2017/18, the total number of searches of land registers
and supply of imaged copies and photocopies of land
records were 5,644,216 (+6.1% from previous year) and
838,871 (+12.2% from previous year) respectively.

5,319,961 5,644,216

5,046,806

829,181 778,354 797,303 747960 838,871
% —% *- *— %
55
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Year

© zptwzem

Searches of Land Registers

o RS R R EIA R A
Imaged Copies and Photocopies of Land Records Supplied
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T FMEFBEBA A4 A5 The Land Registry is providing search services over the
it & & Z £t J(www.iris.gov.hk) 32t internet via our IRIS Online Services at www.iris.gov.hk
FEH7RK §R20/\B (B EF78  seven days a week for 20 hours a day (from 7:30 a.m. to
309 EEH FF3FE30D)HEMAR  3:30 am. the next day). The public can conduct searches
e RBALAIUIELERFHE  on either an ad hoc or a subscription basis. The number
THEEDEITEM - £2017/185%F  of subscribers increased by 62 (+4.8%) and reached 1,348
B B2REMEREMTE2ME(E  during 2017/18. Currently, searches conducted online
F+4.8%) - 4B 83E1,3481E - IBEFA L constituted about 93% of the total search volume. The
EMOEREMENIZ% - H&4  remaining 7% were conducted over the counter. Counter

TR ARERATEBRIFAERN search service is available at our Customer Centre in
PR AL - LA &u}?ﬁiﬁ JCBB Queensway Government Offices and the New Territories
TD§/§E’]%5?‘¥H}EP/U BIERIE  Search Offices (NTSOs) in Tai Po, Yuen Long and Tsuen
AR T - Wan.

BT ETMREA

No. of Searches of Land Registers

ERRE
No. of Searches
7,000,000
5,644,216
6,000,000 5,172,590 5,046,806 5,319,961
4,670,533
R 5,241,067
) )
4,000,000 4,738,037 4,647,371 4,893,606
4,260,234
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000 410,299 434,553 399,435 426,355 403,1 49
* = 2 % - %
0 FE
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Year

o 1B Counter searches @ #_LEM Online searches . #BE Total
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SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

The Land Registry publishes new editions of the Street
Index (Sl) and the New Territories Lot/Address Cross
Reference Table (CRT) annually to help the public correlate
property addresses and building names with lot numbers
in the territory. To facilitate online search services, online
versions of the Sl and the CRT are made available for free
browsing on the Land Registry website or through the
hyperlink on the IRIS Online Services. Up to 31 March
2018, over 143,000 visits to the online versions of the Sl
and the CRT released on 28 April 2017 were recorded.

EENREERE

BRIBCGEEMEBE RGN - LiiEflE
BEREBEEFYRFIENGMER
WHEETRZEBNLCERETE
MERIRTE o 72017184 » Ffft
MEFTRZEELF213ME - 2HH
¥ FTUREBEBREILE10,7111E -

Owners’ Corporation Services

The Land Registry is responsible for registration of owners’
corporations and provision of filing and search service for
owners’ corporation records under the BMO. In 2017/18,
213 new owners’ corporations were registered. The total
number of owners’ corporations in the territory reached
10,711.
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Customer Services

The Management and Customer Services Division of

the Land Registry is dedicated to the planning and
coordination of customer services for promoting service
excellence to meet rising public aspirations. We make use
of various channels to liaise and communicate with our
customers for improving our services.

Liaison with Customers
Land Registry Joint Standing Committee

The Land Registry Joint Standing Committee, comprising
the Land Registrar, her senior management team and
representatives of the Law Society of Hong Kong,

meets regularly to discuss and exchange views on land
registration matters, the Land Registry’s services provided
to legal practitioners and preparation for implementation
of the title registration system. The membership of the
Committee is at Annex Il (a).
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BEFE &/ HA Customer Liaison Groups

NEEEEMERPH% /N4 (A2 The Land Registry maintains regular liaison with customers
BN RN E WIS BT PR through two Customer Liaison Groups (private and public
wo O BEPTHMAENZHTE - sectors) to update customers on the department’s latest
FRIEFI THEFEFr - £ 2B EMAR  initiatives, services and procedures, to facilitate exchange
IR ET LREZRZA - LA of views on operational and service delivery issues, and

MRAEFHMERELDE - to respond to customers’ feedback.

BN E (LB )
Customer Liaison Group (Private Sector)

EMBEPH&/)DNENKER  The private sector group comprises representatives

BEER ZEMBERTIEER: from the legal community, professional bodies and trade

NEWBRZPE &/ NHEMK B Al  associations while the public sector group comprises

REBRFHPARAEHEE - W@ representatives from Government departments and public

NHEHKERBREDR RM (o)X bodies. The lists of membership of the private sector

(c) and the public sector groups are at Annexes Il (b) and (c)
respectively.

= SR N AR (D RS

Customer Liaison Group (Public Sector)
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Land Registrars’
Development Officers Conference 2017

gEoh - F Ao B R 2017F 4 A8 A
EHEREFEARANBHLEIR
HMEINTREMBELEREZES
FREKRE -

ERTHAMREEEES

Visits

The Land Registry maintains close relationship with its
local, Mainland and overseas associates. Representatives
of the Land Registry attended the Land Registrars’
Development Officers Conference held in Perth, Australia
from 18 to 21 July 2017 and the Registrars of Title
Conference held in Edinburgh, Scotland from 24 to

27 October 2017 respectively.

& 2
H AR

20174 R AR
Registrars of Title Conference 2017

We received two delegations from the Ministry of Land
and Resources of the People’s Republic of China and
the Urban Planning, Land and Resources Commission
of Shenzhen Municipality in April and August 2017
respectively.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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We also received a delegation led by the Deputy Chief
Minister and Second Minister of Ministry of Urban
Development and Natural Resources and which comprised
representatives from his Ministry, the Ministry of Local
Government and Housing, the State Attorney General’s
Chambers, and the Land and Survey Department of
Sarawak, Malaysia in March 2018. The conferences and
visits had provided useful opportunities for exchanging
views on the latest developments on land registration.

BRE+ERBAKRE

A delegation from the Ministry of Land and Resources of the People’s Republic of China

AYTREME L EREZEGNEXE
A delegation from the Urban Planning,
Land and Resources Commission of Shenzhen Municipality

BRAGPHNENRTERERRAERE  EHOMFTBRNAREES  FHRABMIHEAIERZRNEKE
A delegation from the Ministry of Urban Development and Natural Resources, the Ministry of Local Government and
Housing, the State Attorney General’'s Chambers, and the Land and Survey Department of Sarawak, Malaysia
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Communication Channels
Land Registry Circular Memoranda

In 2017/18, we issued a Land Registry Circular
Memorandum to update legal practitioners and customers
on our new product/services.

Land Registry News

Two electronic issues of the Land Registry News were
released in May and November 2017 respectively to keep
our customers updated on the Land Registry’s initiatives,
services and activities.

Information Leaflets

During the year, we updated the information leaflets to
provide latest information on our services.

Press Releases

We issue press releases from time to time to announce the
Land Registry’s latest service updates and provide regular
statistics on land registration and search.

EETEMERLEEES
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Customer Service Hotline

Our Customer Service Hotline supported by an Interactive
Voice Response System offers a whole range of
information through recorded messages and manned
operator service. A queuing service for specific service
help desks is also available. Through collaboration with
the Efficiency Office’s 1823 Call Centre, our hotline enquiry
service is provided 24 hours a day.

T ih 5 R 48 Uk

TR EBE7808 AKX B ENEH
Uh o B AES9%H A KB E A
B %M AXRBEEIHE -

Land Registry Website

During the year, there were 7.8 million visits (59% in the
Chinese language and 41% in the English language) to the
Land Registry website.
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1215 Awards

2017F [P ESHKBERARZEFM] The Secretary for the Civil Service’s Commendation
Bk Award 2017

AEHNEETTHERRELZLTELE  Our Clerical
2017TF W[ R BSHRHA K= Officer,
Ml AREMHEHRKRIR - Mrs CHIU CHAN 200 74FEZ0 55 L F05 b Jo B 5 0 R v o6 ey

The Secretary for the Civil Service’s Commendation
Award Presentation Ceremony 2017

Yin-yi, Jessica,
was awarded “The
Secretary for the
Civil Service’s
Commendation
Award 2017” for
her exemplary
performance.

2017 [HREFEE = FT

ANy Rl B e = g = = o
HERE2017TF B H 8 52 71 52 |

— PBABR URBMHERER
FERARKRFOHERRR -

The Ombudsman’s
Awards 2017

Our Land Registration
Officer I, Mr CHAN
Man-chung Benson,
was awarded “The
Ombudsman’s Awards
2017 for Officers of Public
Organisations” for his
excellent performance in
handling customers’ enquiries and complaints.

[ERBA A ¥ =318 ERB Manpower Developer ‘ L aa
MR TS ERA N ERY WA Bl

E - EEBEE)BAMAREE FIERB The Land Registry places great

AATEEZHFFE | —TAANRE| emphasis on staff training and

MRS AHMmME(BH2017F4 A1 development. In recognition of

HZE2019%3A31H) r LA&EE FH 9 our achievements in manpower

EAOENEREENEHRI o training and development, we
were accredited “Manpower
Developers” by the Employees
Retraining Board (ERB) for two
consecutive years from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2019 under the “ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme”.

EETEMERLEEES
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(tHhEMEZLEREL£2015/165F  Awards for Land Registry Trading Fund (LRTF) Annual

)R IE Report 2015/16
(i EEEE £2015/164F — The LRTF
WYRE=-([ERHKRIE  BREXE ®LacP - Annual Report
fe5 1 B % 7 88 (LACP) 78 %5 4912016 w 2015/16 won
Vision Awards] 2 [ EJff| R F 3 — i otk b "~ three international
N B BAT 48 Bl ) &) 4R 82 The Land Registry awards i.e. the
[2017 B B Astrid Awards| Z [ 3R GenNex Financial Media Limited Silver Award
— JEEFEBAR INIRE AR Silver Award of the League
[P017TEIRFERILBEBRE | 2 s v e e of American
— BFHE R EEAR AR Tl s . Communications
#E o _— S Professionals
e I - - s (LACP) 2016 Vision Awards
ARC AWARDS under the category of
St ANUAL CELEDRATION OF THE WORLD'S UEST ANNUAL REPORTS “Print-Based Annual
BRONZE WINNER Reports — Government
- — City/State/National”,
the Bronze Award in the EXCELLENCE IN DESIGN
International Astrid Awards BRONZE WINNER

2017 under the category
of “Annual Reports — Not- GenNex Finar
For-Profit Organisations” e e
and the Bronze Award in
the International Annual

Report Competition (ARC) T L ANAL O
Awards 2017 under the
category of “lllustrations —
Government Agencies and
Offices”.

I REREBEAEEIEXHE
MIZREFHRLBEIDERMESR
BoHeElERERKREIRE - L
AFEREREETRMEREERE
FHITE
&7 e

The annual report was also
honoured with “Citation for
Environmental, Social and
Governance Disclosure”
Award under the Hong Kong
Management Association
(HKMA) Best Annual Reports
Competition. These awards
reinforce our pursuit for quality
production of our annual
reports.

101?HEST ANNUAL RFPORTS
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Development Projects and New Services

e-Memorial Form

MEMORIAL of an instrument to be registered in the Land Registry CECE
under the Land Registration Ordinance
A5 L RER R AITE i LEMR AR LA Y 1 = LR
; Tt WEW HE 8
| St A e v
Nature and cliect of the inmrument TEVATN ROM
- [
[0 Preview |
Da54085 [as4664
DrsMOT  P— 1 1 1 -
Do |
DS | The maximum number of PRNs (including ¢ - °) to be
| oo retrieved is 100.
DSOOL | gk $ R T de k10048 40 F A sm3k(ads M-, ) -
DG4 |
e TR
1 -| ATS3TIZ9 | ATS36RRD ATSIN06 ATS36936 ATSITITS
B4310582 ATSITIRL ATSITIN B3133960 BTIMS3S
B3135021 CI3E4006 B3135T13 B3103312 B50L4185
4 -{ (0380358 B3103152 COZR0ZRR BAOERGXT BIOGITS
B3lM122 B3 106 COFR06EE BT3061 | COGA0RGE
BT319750 BOSGH09 BSSRHE BEAGIE4 BOSS9L0S
BOSS3L1S BTIT9041 BOSS426] BS540 0060082
BOS43TIE BOS514T2 BTATEST B60603 ASE149E
[4={ C1328872 | ASR15020 ASB15308 ABBL53T9 | ASRI2691
4 - ASRIS342 | ADR15363 ASB15014 B4601714 BAGDI0S
BA0GE50] ASRISZR0 BTZRGR61 BSOFM07 BITH60G
Yy B320388 BINIOTE

ETadfMAERBaTiEMER
T ERFEERXREIMER
MEHRNEMHERRE TS A
AAERGHEERE TH - EFEM
MEBEBRZERERNRIAERE
ABEMERA - EXNRAEBH
EREVE EAFPHEEREME
ExRER - ARIFAEMEME
FIRREBONEENELRE o
ERPANR-—EEXEREE—
BERXHAMERR  RBEHE
AENEFEMBERBAIER
RERAERBAHBER  —
REBZHEMBERNE -

EETEMERLEEES

The e-Memorial Form is an electronic template of the
memorial form provided by the Land Registry for free
downloading from our homepage to facilitate users to
complete the memorials in a more efficient way. Two
versions of the e-Memorial Form are available i.e. a basic
version and one with data import function. The basic
version has an auto-fill function enabling users to retrieve
property particulars from the IRIS for reference while
they are filling in the memorial form. For users handling
a series of transactions or property projects with the
same set of basic information, the form with data import
function enables transfer of the relevant information from
a computer spreadsheet to multiple memorial forms in
one go.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

The usage of e-Memorial Form is increasing steadily
and has accounted for over 65% of the total number of
memorials delivered with the instruments for registration.
To further boost the usage, two enhanced versions

of the e-Memorial Form were released on 26 March
2018. The enhanced versions can further speed up the
preparation of memorials by allowing users to complete
the memorial forms in a simpler and more convenient way.
Major enhancements include increasing the maximum
number of Property Reference Numbers (PRN) of which
the corresponding property particulars i.e. address, lot
information and undivided shares, if applicable, can

be retrieved from the IRIS through the auto-fill function
from 20 to 100, and adding the auto-fill function to the
e-Memorial Form with data import function for retrieving
the corresponding property particulars from the IRIS for
reference in filling out the memorial form. The Land
Registry will continue to monitor users’ feedback to identify
room for further improvement.

Inter-departmental Project

The Land Registry has been collaborating with the Rating
and Valuation Department in the Property Information
Online (PIO) Service through supplying and aligning
address information to facilitate the public to obtain
comprehensive property information. A hyperlink to the
PIO is available on the IRIS website to further enhance the
convenience of searching property records.
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e-Alert Service

The Land Registry launched the e-Alert Service for
property owners on 20 July 2015 on a subscription basis.
The service provides email alerts to property owners
when instruments are lodged for registration against their
properties. It offers a convenient and useful means for

property owners to monitor anywhere with ease if any
instrument affecting their properties has been lodged
for registration so as to help protect their interest in the
valuable properties owned by them.

We modified the e-Alert Service and extended it to the
Authorised Institutions (Als) under the Banking Ordinance
(Cap. 155) (i.e. licensed banks, restricted licence banks
and deposit-taking companies) with effect from 1 February
2017 to help them better manage credit risks in mortgage
lending. The Als, with consent from the property owners
concerned for subscribing to our Service, will receive
electronic notifications from the Land Registry when further
charge/mortgage documents in respect of the properties
mortgaged to the Als are lodged for registration with the
Land Registry.
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SERVICES AND OPERATIONS

Future Plan

e-Alert Service

In line with the global trend towards electronic business
and to provide greater security and convenience to the
Als for submission of service applications for the e-Alert
Service as well as to increase the operational efficiency
of both the Als and the Land Registry, we are working
to implement an e-channel for the e-Alert Service for
the Als. A two-phase implementation approach will be
adopted with phase one for providing a facility for online
submission of service order applications and phase two
for adding a facility for online submission of other service
applications and a set of user functions (e.g. maintenance
of account information and enquiry of service order status
and account balance). It is targeted to implement phase
one of the project in early 2019 and phase two in mid
2020. The initiative is welcomed by the Als.

The Land Registry will continue to monitor users’ feedback
to identify room for further enhancement of the e-Alert
Service.
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TITLE REGISTRATION

Recent Development

Stakeholder Consultation on Conversion,
Rectification and Indemnity Arrangements under
LTO

During the year, we have kept up with our engagement
with stakeholders to resolve the outstanding issues
including the mechanism of converting existing land

and properties to the title registration system, and the
rectification and indemnity arrangements under the LTO.
We have met with the Consumer Council, the Heung Yee
Kuk, the Hong Kong Association of Banks, the Hong
Kong Conveyancing and Property Law Association Limited,
and the Law Society of Hong Kong to exchange views
on the latest development of LTO. Meetings were also
held with the Land Titles Ordinance Steering Committee
(LTOSC) and the Land Titles Ordinance Review Committee
(LTORQC) for discussing and exchanging views on the
proposal of implementing title registration on new land
first (“new land first” proposal) and the proposed Two-
Stage Conversion Mechanism. We also shared with
LTOSC and LTORC members the interim findings of our
study of the latest developments regarding title registration
legislations and good practices being adopted in several
overseas jurisdictions with common law background.
The membership lists of the LTOSC and LTORC are at
Annexes Il (d) and (e) respectively. We will continue to
liaise closely with stakeholders to further refine the “new
land first” proposal and resolve any outstanding issues
under the proposed Two-Stage Conversion Mechanism so
as to forge broad consensus for early implementation of
the title registration system in Hong Kong.

Review of LTO and Preparation of LT(A)B

Preparation of the LT(A)B is in progress taking into account
the changes to the proposed conversion, rectification
and indemnity arrangements brought about by ongoing
discussions with stakeholders. Some other technical
issues in the LTO have been identified and are being
reviewed. We have also been liaising with relevant
Government departments to address and resolve interface
issues between the LTO and the legislations under their
purview.

Future Plan

We will continue to work closely with stakeholders and
relevant Government departments to address any issues
on the proposed amendments to the LTO. We will
complete the study of the latest developments regarding
title registration legislations and good practices being
adopted in several overseas jurisdictions with common
law background with a view to enhancing our amendment
proposals. We will also endeavour to forge consensus
among the key stakeholders on the “new land first”
proposal to enable early implementation of title registration
in Hong Kong.
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Elﬁlﬁ Staff Development

& 4w Staffing

iﬂﬂ?ﬂﬂﬁ@lﬁiﬁ B — i%lléﬁﬁ% The Land Registry maintains a well-trained and highly
NMEBEFUHNETER - REEZ flexible team of staff. The core group of staff are civil

BEEZ LB T RSP REFR  servants to ensure stability of the department and quality

ﬂ‘“%f%ﬁ’ﬁgi Mo BPITIRIER ﬁ"f‘ of service to customers. Contract staff under Non-civil

B& Ak EW 1% BRT% & 4016 FREE Service Contract or Post-retirement Service Contract terms
BHANE - AEFOE $f’EI%ﬁ%T are also employed to give flexibility to the department for
%ﬁﬂiﬁﬂ’]?ﬁiﬁ ° responding to changes in operational or business needs.

B Z=2018F3A31H  KEXEMAT  As at 31 March 2018, we had 496 permanent and 91
496Z FEABMANBIEAFKEEAL contract staff members. Our permanent staff comprise
AB - BBRABEBESETHABENA officers of various grades including Land Registration

8 pELHEMEM - 2AD - EM  Officers, Solicitors, Treasury Accountants, Analysts/
A RGN R EEETE K Programmers and general grades. Our contract
—BBREAESE - AHABRIBIEL  staff include Land Registration Executives, Solicitors,
HFE AT ECEN IR © A0 - ®ETAD - €  Accountant, Accounting Executive, Secretary and Clerks.
BN MENAHNIXESE - KFEE  We regularly review our staffing position and adjust
Eﬁﬂﬁﬁf\i%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁfﬂ - WA EEIE  the number of contract staff in the light of changes in
FENNEMBAEESLHOAENEE o operational requirements.

TR ETEBREREARAENZOLE  The Land Registration Officer grade is the core grade in
Z o BAFR2017F10 AR B AFHBIE  the department. In October 2017, we commenced an
— R EE - )3[#4913,000A  open recruitment exercise for Land Registration Officers I,
EREGE - Bl L MEAEESH  which had attracted about 13,000 applications. A media
BAEER R L EMEMEERMEMR  interview by Sing Tao Daily was conducted to share some
J HEST(ESB®RYMM - B8 tips and guide with the applicants by Mr Francis WAN,
BEDELBFHRFIES - KEERE Deputy Registry Manager and Miss Rachel CHAN, Land
RIBEREEI7Z —F 5 E  Registration Officer

T HZBEB/AEL20% - &8 1. We would recruit
HENEFBMBAREAOATF - LAFERT  a total of about 17
P IR SIGINE TIEDRE o new Land Registration

Officers Il under this
recruitment exercise,
which represent nearly
20% of the total
strength of the grade.
The new cohort
would help strengthen
our manpower to
meet the increasingly
challenging tasks of
the department.

(EBBH)HBM L RA
Online version for media interview by Sing Tao Daily
https:/www.landreg.gov.hk/en/pdf/Singtac-A16.pdf
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Staff Training

Staff training is a critical component of human

resource development. We provide opportunities and
encouragement for staff at all stages of their career to
help them realise their potential. To achieve this, we
develop an annual departmental staff training plan and
organise training programmes in accordance with the
plan. The ultimate objective is to enable staff to work with
confidence, strengthen teamwork, reinforce commitment to
service excellence and support continuous improvement
in individual and departmental performance.

In 2017/18, we arranged over 2,240 days of training in
various modes on a wide spectrum of subjects.

Year-round Training

Various training courses were provided to enhance the
core competencies of the workforce of the Land Registry.

For strengthening teamwork and positive mindset when
facing challenges, all officers of the department attended
an experiential training programme on “Team Building and
Building Resilience to Challenges” in late 2017.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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BMBNEFAMATABOEERAAEERE  Courses on performance management and language
WRIVEE NBEXIIHARTE - LA training were arranged for junior and newly recruited
HMWPEE TIEMBEMEREIEME officers to equip them with the essential management and
ER TS - writing skills required for daily duties.

KRB N FPREIEBAEHLZIT  While junior and middle managers attended respective
BRI A PIRR T8O - #ET KRB tailo-made courses on “Analysis, Judgement and
SREIE | THES AR B9 | TYEY > Problem-solving Skills” and “Presentation Skills” with a
VA o& b P fE R B BRI R AU F.  view to enhancing their problem-solving and presentation
5o ZAXBABMZMTIE@ESH  skils, clerical grade staff learned analytical skills in
BRI | T1ELDS _ ) workplace through a programme
NEBTIELERDHT ' on “Problem-solving and

RI7 Decision Making Skills”.

Bt BE T8 TIHEAAQ/EQe  An “AQ/EQ Training for Handling Adversities” programme
BB iR | TIEY - MIRFHMMIE Y was organised for staff to strengthen their resilience in

W5 H) PP e Ed[4E£ M tE] handing adversities. Participants were particularly inspired
DETHMMEEREGFHFELE by the sharing of “Life-fighters” who had overcome
LHES2ENEFEBMRE - adversities in life.
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BNEXBERBEBHR  ARENSR

ANBRPERERENE - UIEFE M
RRBARE - MAR25E=R AR
E2018F2 A2 T 5E » LAINRM
MR L EZEMEMEERENTIE -

EETEMERLEEES

Training courses on “Microsoft Windows 10” and
“Microsoft Office 2016” were arranged to dovetail with the
upgrade of the relevant computer software in the year.

T I

|p"(|| l’"l |

We also regularly arrange talks and briefing sessions

by other Government departments, including the Civil
Aviation Department, the Competition Commission, the
Government Property Agency and the Inland Revenue
Department during the year, for our senior staff for
broadening their knowledge and exposure. In addition, in
February 2018, 25 of our senior staff paid a visit to the
Legislative Council (LegCo) to deepen their understanding
of the work of the LegCo and the LegCo Secretariat.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Self-learning

In addition to classroom training, the Land Registry
encourages self-learning through e-learning programmes.
All staff are allowed to undertake a maximum of one and a
half days’ e-learning during which they are free from their
office work to pursue self-learning of various interested
topics at our Learning Resource Centre.

Staff Development

A wide range of staff development programmes are offered
to broaden staff’s perspectives so that they can meet
new challenges, strengthen their communication skills
and develop policy formulation and leadership capacities.
In 2017/18, our staff members attended the “National
Studies” programmes, “Innovative Leadership Programme”,
and “Leadership Essentials Programme”, “Advanced
Management Workshops Programme” and joined the
“Secretariat Attachment Scheme” organised by the Civil
Service Training and Development Institute.

Staff Motivation and Recognition

As a trading fund department, we place high value on
staff motivation and recognition for the continual pursuit
of excellence in customer services.

Staff Suggestions Scheme

Since 1993, we have introduced the Staff Suggestions

Scheme to encourage all staff to make suggestions on
various issues, including improvement of service quality,
operation, efficient use of resources and environmental

protection.

In 2017/18, we received a total of 5 staff suggestions and
5 awards were granted.
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R HI AR 7% 22 B 51 2 Long Service Appreciation Award Scheme

RRESE()EREEBRITRR -TERPERRBE -
Mr CHAN Chiu-cheung (left), was awarded the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
20 Years’ Meritorious Service Certificate.

REB1999F RETAF MK Since 1999, we have launched the annual “Long Service
HAPR S 42 BT 8l LARBEAKE  Appreciation Award Scheme” to give recognition to staff
FHRGMERERMHBE L £ with long and meritorious service in the department. In
20174 - HEISMIREFEE25%F 2017, a total of 18 staff members with 25 or more years
A LB T 481F o of service were honoured with the award.

EEREEL T (D) EEE LT HAME =T AFRBRBEE -
Mrs CHIU CHAN Yin-yi, Jessica (left), received a certificate for the Land Registry 35 Years’ Long Service Appreciation Award.

ERTHAMREEEES
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Best Frontline Staff Award Scheme

The Land Registry has launched the Best Frontline Staff
Award Scheme since April 2007 with the aim of fostering
a culture of good customer service and to recognise
laudable staff performance and achievements.

0MTFTHFNEBREAEMRBEESR -

Winner of the Team Award for the second half year of 2017 is Search Services Section.

EEREGEEFrERMR X H
BEXFEITAEXZHNEAE
THNEBKENSR EBRENHNET
MEBEREEEREPRBE A O L
REMPOERE  MEXRSB °

ETREE

KM FPABREEHANERYIR
HEEREFPRBEEBAEEZ - &M
BEEBTHRTNEIWES
& BATIMAMEIEANEEE
RESHBET R ER -

WM EEES

(B EZ B e KA 146K B & (A
BETHBIMEEBNREK -ZBEE
BFEET-AeH MeEETHE

BEZHENTHEMEE-

Individual staff members and teams receiving the highest
number of commendations from our customers in each
half-year period are awarded. To give due recognition,
the names of the winning staff members and teams are
posted at the Customer Centre and NTSOs.

Staff Relations

We recognise that effective communication between
management and staff is crucial for the provision of
quality service to customers. We continue to encourage
communication among staff at all levels through regular
staff relations meetings, departmental publications and
staff welfare functions.

Departmental Consultative Committee

The Committee comprises 14 representatives of various
staff groups and representatives of the management. It
meets quarterly to promote better understanding and
cooperation between staff and the management.
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Staff Magazine

The Staff Magazine is a departmental publication

issued periodically under an editorial board comprising
staff of various divisions. It covers a wide range of
topics including featured stories, business updates,
community involvement, staff news and activity snapshots,
environmental protection, health tips, information
technology and language knowledge, etc. It is popular
among staff and helps promote team spirit and a sense
of corporate identity.

Staff Recreation Club

The Staff Recreation Club is run by staff on a voluntary
basis. In 2017/18, it organised various social and
recreational activities for staff and their families, including
the department’s annual dinner, Christmas party, volunteer
social services, interest classes, outing and sport
activities.
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Knowledge Management

The Land Registry maintains a Knowledge Management
System to facilitate systematic management and sharing of

knowledge across the department.

The system contains

over 8,400 reference documents and precedent cases.
Around 150 searches were made by our staff daily for
reference in their work in 2017/18.

Future Plan

The Land Registry will continue to reinforce its
organisational learning culture by providing appropriate
training programmes to staff and arranging suitable
officers to attend executive development programmes
and training programmes of the Civil Service Training and

Development Institute in the coming year.

Through the

training and development programmes, staff capabilities
will be strengthened to better prepare for changes and
contribute to the future development of the department.
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Integrated Registration Information
System (IRIS)

The IRIS Online Services have been operating smoothly.

Enhancements to IRIS

The Land Registry implemented the following major
enhancements to the IRIS in 2017/18:

N upgrading the system infrastructure to provide reliable
services to customers continuously;

N providing a hyperlink “Geolnfo Map” in the “Search

Land Register” function to direct users to the
matched lot information page on the “Geolnfo Map”
of the Lands Department. In addition, a new “Go
to IRIS Online Services” hyperlink was added on the
“Geolnfo Map” to facilitate users to search the land
register of the matched lot;

ooGeo-‘nfoMaf w1 & v | o]
i oM@ﬁ&M@
ma =ML R u % T v ach i
. | (7 (+_;-_‘"_:_::' BEARY e =]
wamn ? 3,[=4
G| ITHSL Cltien 1 ;" ax M AR r\‘;l.
Il MM ;i:l'
I = o+
s ’-_“ .'l euim T4
o [ e
X .
= BAAR
A L CLL T
( ne

0 x
T smSvaNgAnKEn . W

N AfAEEINETHmELMIA N providing a new option of choosing “Current” or “Full”

FE.:’EU*E%UJ—@HE ffﬁﬂﬂi
[2 &R/ ¥ iE 1R

search for all selected land registers by clicking the
“Set All Type of Enquiry” links;
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FEIGAEMENEZIZRLAE W  enabling subscribers to retrieve the preceding order
FPER—BRBERNEFEAR list when they re-login to the IRIS Online Services for
HiEF - PJEIERTTRCAVET & - 15 adding/removing orders and completing the order list
m/ AR IE R R EAKET B within the same business day;
BT
LR FMYE X EBE N enlarging the font size of memorial number shown
EELENIMEERRAOTEM on document/plan section barcode labels to enhance
X AIRFIEWE clarity;
BEEIEMIwELMI BEmME N providing a drop-down suggestion list of the lot
A RIRE L - RESRE numbers associated with the lot type inputted by
B AR BRI RI R AR customers for selection when customers enter the
ERmIRIEE AR E lot number information on the page of “Search Land
Register”;
Search Land Register
e
o o o )
mw S:bzz 5 Order Land Document
e z e s AEAs g
For enquiries, please contact
® P — = glilascg;:;’mer Service Hotline:
ok
™
BEPEIFTBELHWXHFIE®mMEIE N showing a reminder ‘Copies of plan(s) ordered will

R AFMEM R G LA
BIEO G L U B A
WHEBKEABAE g
VERIRR  [[E A8 5] 7 % 5 #
B ZE (X o WEIFE
i ENEEFRERAR - 3105
0000 =/ :

EETEMERLEEES
THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

be delivered in multiple pages. For enquiries, please
contact our Customer Service Hotline: 3105 0000.’
on the “Order Land Document” page when customers
order plain copies of pre-IRIS imaged land documents
with oversized black-and-white plan(s);
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showing a reminder ‘Subscriber can unlock a locked
Login ID by using the online “Forget password”
function. The locked Login ID will be unlocked after
a correct answer to the preset security question is
given.” when subscribers try to log in to the IRIS
Online Services with a locked Login ID;

s it neces fist will be removed afes login

= Mandateey Fislds
Legin Options ™  For tlscmst Lagn Uy "
U Fet un-lve-wm- Subseriber can unlock a locked
mllr pplicable dotis | ogin 1D by using the online
ey : “Forget password” function. The
F
SRR ocked Login 1D will be unlocked
Login 10 after a correct answer to the
Pasaword™: ij preset security question is given.
MO SHARING OF LOGIN I0 AND PASSWORD N o " g
o pasawoei i Gutected by the syusam, he curment Close This Window
..—...m-.,l.- tipperl tmmedistaly
Please read ihe Parsonal itomaiion Collection Siutemént &t chekig “Logie”, you confim that you L
undeisiand the Personal Information Col Ihrl-mSuhm ] asd agres

RAGTMEEAFNIRIGT
2 A R - L
WMERAGELTAPOMWINGE
=i Blarl Blzipl : £
248 o A B E3 (BDAE “mdb.

ar)” 2% & “mdb-yyyymmdd.zip” -
BA K2 4 “mmim.zip” 2k &
“mmim-yyyymm.zip”) * LA {E £
Z W FMHEZ RS ANIR BT
MHE AEH BE 2 A 5 BIK
Amadb_no_reply@landreg.gov.hk 1
mmim_no_reply@landreg.gov.hk :

A K

A

BLEFEMBERENINEE -
BIELEAINERBEEHEAER
Nee e dMEM RG] B
LHE%‘%&%*@F%%%E’J%%%
Z &% - B Z201EE £100
B ERTHINIXEMHERE
E’JJ&WHE’J% 7B E S

M ERMRER  YRES
#X%E%E%@m,ﬁﬂﬁ
BEREANENEFEMBEE
RIREEREHEAE R

Lxﬁﬁﬂm%a’]’ﬂ;?.&b?%
FEEINPER -

enhancing the Memorial Day Book (MDB) and
Monthly Memorial Information on Mortgage
Transactions (MMIM) services by changing the
file format of the attachment from “arj” to “zip”
for MDB subscribers; including the date in the
filename (i.e. from “mdb.arj” to “mdb-yyyymmdd.
zip” and from “mmim.zip” to “mmim-yyyymm.zip”)
for easy reference; and changing the senders of
the email to “mdb_no_reply@landreg.gov.hk” and
“mmim_no_reply@landreg.gov.hk” for MDB and
MMIM subscribers respectively; and

enhancing user-friendliness of the e-Memorial Forms
by increasing the maximum number of PRNs of
which the corresponding property particulars can
be retrieved from the IRIS Online Services and auto-
filled from 20 to 100; expanding the selection lists
on common description/categories of the “Nature
and Object of Instrument” and “Status of Parties”
fields; supporting the proper display of additional
Chinese characters; adding the auto-fill function to
the e-Memorial Form with data import function; and
displaying a progress bar on screen showing the
progress of information being retrieved.
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Other IT Services

For better browsing experience, the Land Registry has
adopted responsive web design for the Land Registry
website to present web pages fit for a browser’s device.

EAMRRR

REEEBERFHEARZRLZNE
Ko ARSEZEARBKRLZE AN KR
EMOE TS EMCERSE - HME
EHEHBIINEMBRRLTBR K
sl BB T INAR B LT B EAR
ZRREBEABHNERN -
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IT Security

The Land Registry implements improvement measures
with reference to the Government’s IT security
requirements and best practices in the IT security field.
Departmental policy and guidelines on IT security are
circulated regularly to staff to reinforce their understanding
and awareness of the importance of information security
and personal data protection.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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Future Plan

We will continue to explore ways to further enhance our
e-services to meet customers’ needs, including:

N to upgrade our network infrastructure to maintain
stable and robust network services;

N to upgrade the hardware and software of the
Interactive Voice Response System (IVRS) and
Voice Recording System (VRS) to enhance system
performance for telephone enquiry services; and

N to progressively convert our public forms to e-fillable
portable document format (PDF) forms for easy filling.
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BB & Financial Objectives
T FMERB(EEEZSER)IA  In accordance with the TFO, the Land Registry pursues
& 1T TN ER BB Z clearly defined financial objectives as follows:

W FEUBFHFAFENLERE N meeting expenses incurred in the provision of

TWMARBATIHATR KK services to the public and Government departments
FFEFIR R B - A & out of the income of the trading fund, taking one year

with another; and

W DEAEMNMLOR OR/RERFHET N  achieving a reasonable return, as determined by the

BARIRIRBEEEEEMER] - Financial Secretary, on the fixed assets employed.
BERRR Actual Performance

EOO16/M7HFE LB - AEFEEREEREE  When compared with 2016/17, turnover increased by
781608 7T (_EF20%) E4.90787C © $81.6 million (up 20%) to $490.7 million mainly due to
TERRAZESABRIEN - EEF  an increase in business volume. Operating expenses
S AN T1,2908 T (EFA3.4%)E  increased by $12.9 million (up 3.4%) to $395.4 million
3.954EL - FEZRAEETEMABFAT mainly due to increase in staff costs.

0 e

F# ANNUAL REPORT
2017-18



BHRE

Financial Performance

B (BEL)
HK$ million
600

500

400

300

200

100

75.4

45.7

38.8

42.3

38.1%

2013/14

gt <

2017/18F EE X O

2014/15

2015/16

& =27
Profit for the year

Analysis of Turnover 2017/18

40.1%

I IR SR RE D

Registration of documents

2.1%

ERTHAMREEEES

3.4%

XIXTURZEE

Owners incorporation
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201718 F EE ENA DM
Analysis of Operating Costs 2017/18

11.9%

BTEH
Staff Costs

3.4%

R
Depreciation and
amortisation

IR 7% B X

Computer service charges

9.0% 9.4%

(=g
—RAMFE L RE R A BEREEE
. Rental and management
General operating expenses
charges

and other costs

EE Forecast

RNERWKRAFMETEEBDIRREX The Land Registry’s revenue and return on fixed assets will
FTEHDMARNGEM EM - IBHE  depend mainly on the business volume in the registration,
Bl R K& % TAF MEMRBHEE - M search, copying and reports on title services which is

EHHSEeXIMEMESAME  subject to performance of the property market and other

MmAHBEREEZTE - R #E relevant factors. We will continue to exercise strict control
B 52 ¥R AR K e on costs.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial
statements of the Land Registry Trading Fund set out
on pages 83 to 119, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Land Registry Trading
Fund as at 31 March 2018, and of its results of operations
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of
the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(6) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit
Commission auditing standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Land
Registry Trading Fund in accordance with those standards,
and | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Other information

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the
Land Registry Trading Fund’s 2017-18 Annual Report,
other than the financial statements and my auditor’s report
thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements,
my responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, | am required to report that fact.
| have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Land
Registry Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager,
Land Registry Trading Fund is responsible for assessing
the Land Registry Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’'s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Audit Commission auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit
Commission auditing standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Land Registry Trading Fund’s internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund;

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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— conclude on the appropriateness of the General
Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Land Registry
Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Land Registry Trading Fund to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kenneth Ho
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

26 September 2018
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EHEW =K
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_T— )/ \F=ZA=+—HIFE for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A BETFTERR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

P &
Note 2018 2017

—E £ Turnover 3 490,731 409,096

EEK AR Operating costs 4 (395,418) (382,476)

BIERR Profit from operations 95,313 26,620

H b Ug A Other income 5 36,530 23,234

Z&%FMEHABR Profit before notional

profits tax 131,843 49,854
BEMEH Notional profits tax 6 (7,579)
FEEF Profit for the year 131,843 42,275
Htt 2 mEK = Other comprehensive income —
FEHAZHIE Total comprehensive

income for the year 131,843 42,275
EEERHRE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 38.1% 8.1%

EOEMOEMM T AR ERRA—ILD

The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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B AR L &
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE—N\F=ZA=1+—H as at 31 March 2018
(AABEFITERR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B 5
Note 2017
RBEE Non-current assets
Y - RIEREEM  Property, plant and equipment 8 266,918 266,286
mEEE Intangible assets 9 10,102 7,897
HNE B & 17 3K Placement with the Exchange Fund 10 646,478 628,869
RITHER Bank deposits 24,000 —
947,498 903,052
REBEE Current assets
JfE U b X N FE #13K J8 Debtors and prepayments 11 25,952 19,365
JEUL A A TWRFX  Amounts due from related parties 9,475 16,411
RITIF Bank deposits 411,000 319,000
B& MIR1TH 88 Cash and bank balances 22,288 18,409
468,715 373,185
REBEE Current liabilities
iR & WA Deferred revenue 12 11,234 7,748
EPR® Customers’ deposits 13 43,262 36,046
JE 1 bR 3K Creditors 17,954 9,642
FEHREE A LR Amounts due to related parties 2,464 2,481
BB A B Provision for employee benefits 14 7,284 5,979
B BEMNEH Notional profits tax payable - 7,573
82,198 69,469
REBEEFHE Net current assets 386,517 303,716
BEERERE Total assets less current
=R liabilities 1,334,015 1,206,768

FEOEMOEMM T AR ERRA—LH

The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

BRI HEAMREEEES
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FRBEE

Non-current liabilities

8 %5 R 5 & (48D
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

78,318

78,318

1,255,697 1,123,854

iR SE B I8 Deferred tax 15
1B B ta A B Provision for employee benefits 14
EEFRHE NET ASSETS

BEXKf#EE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
LEEASENRN Trading fund capital 16
REZEF Retained earnings 17
BHERE Proposed dividend 18

118,300 118,300
1,137,397 963,279
- 42,275

1,255,697 1,123,854

REKRZLT JP KEHL
THEMEEERES
—E-N\FAR=1AH

FEIENMOEMM FER/RAM B MERH —EED °
The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

Ms Doris CHEUNG, JP
IR General Manager, Land Registry Trading Fund
26 September 2018
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RS R
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE—_T— )/ \F=ZA=+—HI&E for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A BETFTTERR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2018

EEUYNE&R Balance at beginning of year 1,123,854 1,100,985

FEA2ENE Total comprehensive income for the year 131,843 42,275
FAEMEKE Dividend paid during the year (19,406)
EFHRNEe Balance at end of year 1,255,697 1,123,854

EOEMOEMM T AR EHRRA—IL

The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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BERER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_T— )/ \F=ZA=+—HIFE for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A BETFTERR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B &
Note 2017

EEIFHMWES®  Cash flows from operating

mE activities
BIERAF Profit from operations 26,620
1 & K B E Depreciation and amortisation 11,743
FEBETFEEEE Loss on disposal of fixed assets

B 200
JE IR 7k K fEUL  Decrease/(Increase) in debtors

B AL IRK and amounts due from related

R, (35 parties

i) 4,341 (13,302)
ELEW AL, Increase/(Decrease) in deferred

O A revenue 3,486 (293)
FERIR X & BT Increase in creditors and

B iE A TR amounts due to related parties

9 3E n 1,564 375
EE@BAEMEE  (Decrease)/Increase in provision

R A,/ 180 for employee benefits (1,085) 712
EFEE 4/  Increase in customers’ deposits 7,216 5,351
EffEZEFEH  Notional profits tax paid - (149)
EEBHMWIES Net cash from operating

RAFRE activities 124,416 31,257

EOEMOEMM T AR ERRA—L

The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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REREBRGE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

B &
Note 2017

REBEWHESE  Cash flows from investing

w2 activities
BAEHA3ME A Increase in bank deposits with

EWRITER original maturities over three

) 48 11 months (116,000) (162,000)
REBEEE Purchase of fixed assets (9,690) (6,076)
HEBTEEF  Proceeds from disposal of fixed

12 assets 3 —
INEEESTFRAE  Increase in placement with the

3 0 Exchange Fund (17,609) (20,089)
2 Y F B Interest received 22,759 23,056
KREEFEEHWESE Net cash used in investing

TR activities (120,537) (165,109)
RMEEBKMNEE Cash flows from financing

RE activities
=ENES Dividend paid (19,406)
BEEEMNESE Net cash used in financing

MR activities (19,406)
HERERFERE Net increase/(decrease) in

fsgnOm2) cash and cash equivalents

=g} (153,258)
FEFHHIRE& KX Cash and cash equivalents at

ZRAE beginning of year 171,667
EEHKRWEER Cash and cash equivalents at

ZEBEE end of year 19 18,409

FEOEMOEMM T AR ERRA—ILH

The notes on pages 89 to 119 form part of these financial statements.

BRI HEAMREEEES
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5 35 Sk B =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(fﬁfjjﬁ?f BHAN - FTBE & 5819 (Amounts expressed in thousands of
B TITRRTEMN) Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
1. B General

MEBE-NAN=ZFRNA=ZTERE(EEESIHRPIINEL30R)ES - 4&6{I7:<L15/9%5%;'{-E
—AN=ZFNA-—BRIZLHFIMREEES - LHEMEGEFIIRFTERNLHE
MABIT L HAMHE  YRFFRHEEH L SR MAMERE LS RE MR E lit
Sh o L EMEBRTEEMIER TV RIABEE -

The Land Registry Trading Fund (“LRTF”) was established on 1 August 1993 under the
Legislative Council Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of
the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Land Registry administers a land registration
system by maintaining an up-to-date Land Register and provides its customers with services
and facilities for searches of the Land Register and related land records. The Land Registry
also processes applications for the incorporation of owners.

2. FEFFHE Significant accounting policies
21 HEEREH Statement of compliance

U

AMBREERRELBABNGARNEABERNETEN n#&:« A (Lt 7 2 S
ETEREASHMASEMNMEERNERNZETHERELER BB EA R
Eﬂ%)%ﬁ%{°iimp£ﬁHF5M$%f£ﬁé%WE’\]£zzaquBZ RIEZWN o

B

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASSs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the LRTF is set
out below.

F# ANNUAL REPORT
201718



Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FTEFHBEm Significant accounting policies (continued)

22 MEVBRRPVER Basis of preparation of the financial statements
AU BRMEROEREMOURBERAIEGTE ©

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical
cost.

RENEBEAVBRELEINNYHRERFTELHEMELEEELESCEEBFELHE - &
AARERER - ZFHE  BARBRREFESTRRNER  UREEHBEMKRA R
XHEMEHRAE o RFEFAMABNERR  SRUNEERMNEBEERBR T ER S
BEMNREMGE - HEREEMBEKRBIEAHRSE  MeRAXFEHTRERIER
HEEREENABNIRAENER - At AR EEREEFMTH -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
management of LRTF to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

HE R B AR R BR SR ERT - WS R A R R B Y EN G
EENRHBNRRRABET NETEYEEFRARNGHY  ARELFR
KB R PR BT -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

THAMRESEESEERS A RRTEL NS REMBRN S FIE - BREARK
FEHHRE  EREHERBGABREPAFENTRARE ETRABKEKR
Rk EHEEMAGENIRESALERFABESR -

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the LRTF’s
accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next year.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FEFHHE@ Significant accounting policies (continued)
23 sREERTRAE Financial assets and financial liabilities
231 PR TR Initial recognition

b

THEMEEEES e REVIRGEENIIDBENENSEREENSREE
ETI DB EHRBARBRER R EMERBAE -

En
m

The LRTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into different categories
at inception, depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilittes were incurred. The categories are: loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities.

TREEMEREERVNEATFEBEESRARRXE) N LAKBERHEENE
EeMABBEMERIIBNRHKAGTE -

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, which
normally equals to the transaction prices, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of the financial liability.

THAMREEERSCERRBFHESR IANGNAET ST 2ReRAEHTRE
ENERAGE EXBEMMETS LARERKRHNEREE  IRKKHEA
rl]E o

The LRTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are accounted for at settlement date.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FTEFSHBEmW Significant accounting policies (continued)
23 sHEENERMEBE® Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
23208 Categorisation

2321 EHFIEREWIRI Loans and receivables
BEXRENEWRIERAEEEETHKANBEEN IS5 BEEZRBMSIR
EREMITECREE M HFMESEESNTESBE2EEERS
Big- - WHEANBEIIEEXSTER BURIRK - EWEEALIRK  B177F
RN NIBITEES o

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and which the
LRTF has no intention of trading. This category includes placement with the
Exchange Fund, debtors, amounts due from related parties, bank deposits,
and cash and bank balances.

B 8 & fE R R SRR B R R RO i B AR AN (B 30 B {a) R (BB 18 (M0
B) 5K (ff5£2.3.4) °

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment losses, if any (note 2.3.4).

ERMXERTECREELCRBENEEXNAE URESERHES
FEMEBWMARTHN A - BEREMNXZEASESH TAERNB RHH
(FERNBREHEANEARSK  MEAKZEREEISHAEBH
IREFEMERNMRE - tHEMEEEESEAEERANXE @2
BTMIANMASNKRIAGARERE  ETSTRBENEEEE -
FRGERRAERNXEHENMERBBXXINTEHNETNER 5
RN P E At s B k3 a% o

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the LRTF estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FEFHHE@ Significant accounting policies (continued)
23 sHEENEMEBE® Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
2.3.2 7\ Categorisation (continued)
2322 Hitt e B E Other financial liabilities

HAit B8 SR BB KRR H 85 AE SR -

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.3.3 s SHFE R Derecognition
ENESREERTRSRENANER RN  UCEBEZSHEEREBRILD
RiEMERNEERE ZeREESHIHER

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

EERNEANESKER BURSEIHE  ZeRAE S maEHER -

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

234 ERMEERE Impairment of financial assets
EHREBERERIEFRNIEEESESERSHERBELTG  UBEEREEHEER
BHREEREE BEFERBEKEREGEEREERERE  BEREUZEENREE
BEARANERMNEAN A AR GEELERARRESRENREZHANZE
FEEKERAER WHEHEZBREBERE  TEEEATEIANEBBELELN
SHEE AIZAEEEeE2ERERABE -

The carrying amount of loans and receivables are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any impairment evidence exists, a loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of such impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
the statement of comprehensive income.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FTEFSHBEmW Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Y% - RfERkEM Property, plant and equipment

R—NANA=ZFNA-—BRBLMEMELEESNYE KRB LS - RTOKEARIRYL
REFTRBK T MRS EESRBRTAIINMGEEAR - H—AWNA=FN\A—H
EHENDE  REEFIVHRBABAK -

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the LRTF on 1 August 1993 were
measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council
Resolution for the setting up of the LRTF. Property, plant and equipment acquired since
1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of acquisition.

TS ~ &R 28 01 A B A E A0 BR R A+ & R AL DR E &5 1R 51 ik (Kf 7£2.6)
— R-NAN=FN\A—BEBItHIMELEELETHNBERME X
— WEESEVERERSEY  TE KERKE  AREMSEY -

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.6):

— buildings held for own use appropriated to the LRTF on 1 August 1993; and

— plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and
fittings and other equipment.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FEFHHE@ Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4 W% - Ffh &%%M (&) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

WESEBYE  RENMSM G AERFHAESZHFEMERA RSRENKAR
B &I EAMT:

— L;@% 304
_ & 22 5%
— M RAREE Gie
- A= e

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipment 5 years
— Equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

R-AN=FNA BRI HEMEEEECH I (R HEMRLEEES 2YE
FIEM)BERIFFEEE -

The land on which the LRTF’s buildings are situated as appropriated to the LRTF on
1 August 1993 is regarded as a non-depreciating asset.

HEYME RERSVMOBEEALEMSFREEENREE 2FNZRAIORTE - I
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\iﬁuﬁ SRANMER °

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income at the date of
disposal.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FTEFSHBEmW Significant accounting policies (continued)
25 B ERE Intangible assets

BRNEEERBANERAMTERRREENMNEREFEARBEKRAE - EEKK
HREAERMEATT MEtHEMEEEESARAERAAER KM LE B
MHEZEERERENML - EXLEREBRERIERMAER - BILEERKAEH
B R 5t 85 K AE fa] i (B &5 18 51 iR (Bt 5£2.6) °

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised
development costs of computer software programmes. Expenditure on development of
computer software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible
and the LRTF has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials. Intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.6).

42 7 O S 9 1 £ T PR E B (56 AL AR B A B RS % o

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

26 BElEEEWNRE Impairment of fixed assets
EEEE BEVE ZERSM UREREEMNKRAECEEARSHERATE
NEEERERBEDNR - EARETRMEENKREESNETKEEEE - BIFH
BEEBEEZHWNERARR EENAKREBHBEAEAFTERLEXNANEEHEM
EHPHREE °

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify any
indication of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment, an impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

27 ERERKRE Cash equivalents
ZRBeEEHEMAERNIRE  ZSHEEEBAKEH M THEA3MEA - WK
AERSEHBENES  MEAEEZFHNERTK -

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FEFHHE@ Significant accounting policies (continued)
28 EE®RA Employee benefits

2.9

THEMREEEECNREEREAKERAGNET FHe M RFRAXHHE
BRERHEEAREAEFENEFEEERBAR -SAKEMS - BEMHRENFX
BREREAFITHREBRF(REDG TERENERSRFEERM HERBIRHEARH
ARG PIEFE S °

The employees of LRTF comprise civil servants and contract staff. Salaries, staff
gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants,
staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the staff by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”), are
charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

WA ZENREBRRZENRFENREABE RN N T BTG B 8 F 5
P EMETHBRHEPRRAEESAINETINEMBERPIH -

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension liabilities are discharged
by reimbursement of the staff on-cost charged by the Government. For other staff,
contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

ZEEHNEB Notional profits tax

BBEEBEHEEMEFEIN2E) T MEEEE2 T EHRBEE T B R
—E b Et- Bt LA BEERt MR B RS MR — B XA
REMERENBEANEH)  ZRBEERBRBEIN)OREMTAE(RHFE6) o AT
T HIMEEELSRBENEUMRAN SRR

The LRTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112). However,
prior to 27 December 2017, the Government had required the LRTF to pay to the
Government an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the
basis of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (see note 6). The accounting
policies adopted by the LRTF for notional profits tax were as follows:

() FERENCGHILERAHBAMEERAEENBENED -

Notional profits tax expense for the year comprised current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities.

(i) AHBERAFEHRRAMBVARBRERERACSERHERGERNHEFER
FBAENHIE  YERAEFERNRIBHOEAFE -

Current tax was the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FTEFSHBEmW Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9 BEMNEFH @ Notional profits tax (continued)
iy BEXHBEENBEREMATERAENEELREBERAERABCANERE M

DREENAHIREERNNELERE - EEHBREELATARERARBERR
MIEHR R mEE -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arose from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arose from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

PIEREHRBRELRKKAEAERBR AN TUERHENECHBEE - 9T #

R e

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it was
probable that future taxable profits would be available against which the assets
could be utilised, were recognised.

A 75 TR Y B R %Exeffﬁ?ﬂ%;%é?&i%ﬁﬁ’]Eﬁ@z?ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ RE
*&i,ﬁﬂm ROELEMKEREROBXRFAE - EERAEEMRABETERR -

The amount of deferred tax recognised was measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities were not discounted.

ELERMBREENRECRAESERENERBENEMN  BRPICIBERANE
R BN AE R AR B RAEENIREE T AR - S HBRELERBEE
ESRBHSREREHNERT AN KSR -

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset was reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and was reduced to the extent that it was no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit would be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction was reversed to the extent that it became probable
that sufficient taxable profit would be available.

Am-BZFT—tF+-A-tLHE" iiﬁzﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁ' BESTEABIXNBENEH -
BA* —tEtHE+TAZT LR BANREFNEHERLECHARESEHROTKLHE
R MAERKAREE2EY S EEEPﬁEp/u(ﬁMTuﬁ 6515) °

However, the LRTF is no longer required to pay notional profits tax with effect from
27 December 2017. The balance of notional profits tax payable and the balance
of deferred tax liabilities as at 27 December 2017 were derecognised, with the
corresponding income recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
(see notes 5, 6 and 15).

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. FEFHHE@ Significant accounting policies (continued)
210 IR AV 7B FR Revenue recognition

LEWANERBEREEER - MEWAKBERNIOEARG T AR -

Revenue is recognised as services are provided. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

2N INE!mE Foreign currency translation
AFFEINERD  BRXZEAMEXRERBT - UFBRAENEREEREE
HIEMERERANEXRERBT  IERFEEANELNRLER  g£2EK
mARPHER

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the closing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

212BE AL Related parties
THAMEEEESERB(EERESKRIDKNYL  WEBRNE TN B ILEEM - F
N tAMEEEECHERTEBPESPEALTETRS - EEATBRENS®
BRI - 2EES  URXBNMESRKEIELENTHE T HE -

The LRTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government established under
the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the LRTF has entered into transactions
with various related parties, including government bureaux and departments, trading
funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the
Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

213 5] R &R1EF] & 8 Bt 7% Impact of new and revised HKFRSs
WMEEANTE
BEAGHMASEEMAE THI KK EITNBAMBRELEL - RSB 4 Kokt
RAIEA - BRARAYBREAFAEHRNFESITHRE U RARREEZERM AT HK

“=4

mam o

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period. There have been no
changes to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments.

TR MEEELS WA KA AR T H # R & B e E ] 37 5 8 B 75 i 45 22 A1 (K
#£24) o

The LRTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
accounting period (note 24).
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. &¥XH Turnover

2018

P38 S Registration of documents 196,972 169,091
=it Search 92,140 86,341
= N Copying 88,593 77,628
FHERE Reports on title 60,288 47,342
ETFRRR e-Alert Service 25,709 —
EFXURZE Owners incorporation 16,717 20,303
HAh Others 10,312 8,391
LR Total 490,731 409,096
4. BEEHRAK Operating costs
2018 2017
ETE&H Staff costs 307,973 297,990
— MR EBEERAX General operating expenses 15,392 14,105
ISR A X Computer service charges 32,751 33,236
HekEgRE Rental and management
charges 21,491 21,604
PR ITEE A Central administrative overheads 3,528 2,797
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 13,556 11,743
RERBETEEEIR Loss on disposal of fixed assets 25 200
HtEH Audit fees 702 801
RG] Total 395,418 382,476
5. Hftgr A Other income

RITERF B Bank deposits interest 3,797
HNEE H & 17 RFI B Placement with the Exchange
Fund interest 19,437
FEIHTERENZEF  Derecognition of notional profits
SHREERIEAR tax payable and deferred tax
f& (Pt 565%.15) liabilities (notes 6 and 15) —
B Total 23,234

BRI HEAMREEEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BENEB Notional profits tax

RZFB—tF+-A-T LR BREKMBEEEESARNXNEBENERERE - 1
R FTACtER RFBER - FERBAEKEERRAELEESNREER
RIELHAIR - REBEZFIR - HEEESRIERREFELEEETNRETBEAEHR AR
BETEET IR AR LR - RFRHRERERTHH L - AE—FT—tF+-A=-+tH
HBEZEESEABABRNXNEENEHEEERE - Bt - tHEMREEES A E
REE—T-\FA=TBLFEFLZENEHEE R_F—LtF+t-A=-t++tH"
RBISTIBEATHNRNZENSHERCKEHER  MABRANEEERERPHER
(Pt 5E5) -

Prior to 27 December 2017, the Government had required all trading funds to pay notional
profits tax and dividends to the Government. On 27 December 2017, the Court of Final
Appeal handed down its judgement in a judicial review case concerning the Office of the
Communications Authority Trading Fund. According to the judgement, it was an error of
law to construe the Trading Funds Ordinance as permitting the inclusion in budgets of the
trading fund of projections for notional tax or dividends. Subsequent to the judgement,
the Government made a change in financial arrangement whereby all trading funds are
no longer required to pay notional profits tax and dividends to the Government with effect
from 27 December 2017. Accordingly, no notional profits tax has been provided by the
LRTF for the year ended 31 March 2018. The balance of notional profits tax payable as
at 27 December 2017 of HK$7.573 million was derecognised, with corresponding income
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (note 5).

() BEZT—tF=ZA=+—HLFE RZ2AURSZTANNKHBEFNSHOT :

The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2017 represented:

NERFIE Current tax
RFEZEFEHOBE Provision for notional profits tax for the

year 7,573
iR JE 77 18 Deferred tax
o EdENES RED Origination and reversal of temporary

differences 6
BENEH Notional profits tax 7,579
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B 75 R R Y X ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. BEHNEBHw

Notional profits tax (continued)

(i) BE_FT—LtF-A=1T—"RALFE BHEAXHESHRNZERRXFTENHEAR

EZHRMT

The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows:

HEFESHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 49,854
BEBRNBHE16.5%:TE  Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of

B ¢ IR 16.5% 8,226
— R BT IE B R One-off tax reduction (20)
AWM ANTIEFE  Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (627)
EHEBEXH Notional tax expense 7,579

7. BEEERKR

Rate of return on fixed assets

BEEERRRRNAEANS(TEENBBAMFEXH) KABEEEFHREEMF

MBEDX - BEBEEBRME - &

BN NEREE AT MAMEEELTAIINE

HURARARETSFEATEELNREL9% (CE—LF 6.9% AR -

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income (excluding
interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed
as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
The LRTF is expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2017: 6.9%)
per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. W% BEKSEM Property, plant and equipment

TR B &4 KA
BEY B REE

Equipment,
Land and Computer Furniture Motor
Buildings Equipment and Fittings Vehicles

2% Cost

E-T—AFENA—A At 1 April 2016 350,000 167,222 17,974 244 535,440
B Additions - 2,103 595 - 2,698
HE T Disposals = (1,422) (2,939) - (4,361)
E-ZT—tF=A=+—H At 31 March 2017 350,000 167,903 15,630 244 533,777
E-—F-—tEMA-A At 1 April 2017 350,000 167,903 533,777
HE Additions - 9,751 10,035
HE Disposals - (2,506) (2,506)
E-E—-/\f=H=+—-H At 31 March 2018 350,000 175,148 15,914 541,306
BEHE Accumulated

depreciation

EZT—RFENA—A At 1 April 2016 87,295 158,969 16,882 196 263,342
FEEMA Charge for the year 3,851 3,908 700 48 8,507
HE Disposals — (1,419) (2,939) - (4,358)
E-Z—+&=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2017 91,146 161,458 14,643 244 267,491
E-—F-—tEMA-A At 1 April 2017 161,458 267,491
FEEA Charge for the year 5,105 9,375
HE Disposals (2,478) (2,478)
K-Z—-/\F=H=+—H At 31 March 2018 164,085 274,388
R EF B Net book value

HE-E—-/\F=H=+—-H At 31 March 2018 255,003 266,918
E-Z—+E=A=+—H8 At 31 March 2017 258,854 6,445 987 - 266,286
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9. BL&EE Intangible assets

ERRGBRRARGRBRE

Computer software licences and

system development costs
2018 2017

24N Cost

EFH At beginning of year 196,806 192,315
NE Additions 6,386 5,080
HE 588 Disposals (77) (589)
EFR At end of year 203,115 196,806
E g & Accumulated amortisation

TEF 4 At beginning of year 188,909 186,065
FEEH Charge for the year 4,181 3,236
HE /i Disposals (77) (392)
FEF 4R At end of year 193,013 188,909
R & B Net book value

FEFK At end of year 7,897

BRI HEAMREEEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10. MEEETF R Placement with the Exchange Fund

SINEETTFRERB6465E B T(ZE—LF:6289F &) HPS6BEBTREE
86508 B IL(—FT—+LF:6,8908BT) AREHRERAD AREBRRERONE - 75 H
RBANF(AFFRBRER  MATRERLE -

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$646.5 million (2017:
HK$628.9 million), being principal sums of HK$560 million plus interest paid but not yet
withdrawn at the end of the reporting period of HK$86.5 million (2017: HK$68.9 million). The
term of the placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of
principal sums cannot be withdrawn.

SINERESFRMNEREFIABENBEELSRAE - ZEXBIEESKREACBECFH
FEFRERELDR  ISFHRARMEFE L —EAFENFHFERER - L0 A TR - WE
BERSE T \FREERXRREFI6% —T—LFREF28% -

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the
average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past
six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government Bonds for the previous year
subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been
fixed at 4.6% per annum for the year 2018 and at 2.8% per annum for the year 2017.

11. EIWIR R K T8 B K18 Debtors and prepayments
2017
JE R IR 3R Trade debtors 9,686
FEET A B : Accrued interest from:

— RITHER — bank deposits 1,484

— INEEESTF R — placement with the
Exchange Fund 4,342
s E Mk EfhiR 4 Prepayment and other deposits 3,853
# R Total 19,365
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13.

14.

15.

IE JE 1L A Deferred revenue

EREXNNFIBERREBRBKE -

This represents subscription fees/other service charges received in advance of which services
have not yet been rendered.

EFRFEZEE Customers’ deposits

EREFEAERFAMKDRONEZES -

This represents deposits received from customers for services to be rendered.

EERAEE Provision for employee benefits

EREFERSHERBUARENRBE TEEFENGTEE(RME28) -

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave for services rendered up
to the end of the reporting period (also see note 2.8).

iE 3E $ 18 Deferred tax

B-T—+Ft+-A— +t5t im&ﬁEgLﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬂlﬁMiW&
6) ° l% TiaMREEERERS TR ELHBEEESEBE N Z—+tF+-_A-_1++tH "
B 2206876 TTHIE L%RIEEL,E.?%E%&QBMEW  MAARER AR EEE K ERPER
(B 5E5) »

With effect from 27 December 2017, the LRTF is no longer required to pay notional profits tax
to the Government (see note 6). Accordingly, the LRTF no longer has deferred tax assets or
liabilities. The balance of deferred tax liabilities as at 27 December 2017 of HK$2.206 million
was derecognised, with corresponding income recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income (note 5).

HE_ZT—tHF=A=1+"RALFE EUBERRRABRNECHEEZHIRFANN
ZET

Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position and the
movements during the year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:

EETEMEREEES
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15. iE 3E B 18 ()

E-ZT—ANFHUA—HH&ER
RemkasERAMmE,GIA)

B 75 ¥R R Y 5 ()

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (continued)

SRERTERE
HNITERHE HoTZESR

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related

Other

depreciation and temporary

amortisation differences

Balance at 1 April 2016 2,306
Charged/(Credited) to
the statement of
comprehensive income

E-®-tF=A=+—AMK
e

Balance at 31 March 2017

16. EEETEX

Trading fund capital

AR S T wEMEEEESHIRE -

This represents the Government’s investment in the LRTF.

17. REBEZF

FEF A &5

Retained earnings

2018

Balance at beginning of year 963,279

FEHEZHEKR Total comprehensive income for
the year 131,843
AR, (EHEZE)#  Transfer from/(to) proposed
ERR B (R K EE18) dividend (see note 18) 42,275
EELNER Balance at end of year 1,137,397

(106) 2,200

963,279
42,275

(42,275)

963,279
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18. B B Proposed dividend

REIFE—LF=F=1—"H MBEARERERREAEZEZALFELEZARAEREHNE
ExhEHRRBEZENFEELESERILMN100% BRIKE L EEDL -

The proposed dividend to the Government as at 31 March 2017 was based on the total
comprehensive income for the year then ended and the target dividend payout ratio of 100%
stated in the annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury.

BE_E—+tF+_A-t++tHEE TtHaAMELEESCEFBERBFT MK E(RKFE6) -
Hit - RZEBE—+F+-A=-++tH AE422158B THREREA/KCELERERTN
(Bt 5£17) o

With effect from 27 December 2017, the LRTF is no longer required to pay dividends to the

Government (see note 6). Accordingly, the balance of proposed dividend as at 27 December
2017 of HK$42.275 million was transferred back to the retained earnings (note 17).

19. RERERRE Cash and cash equivalents

2018

Be MIRITHE R Cash and bank balances 22,288 18,409

RITER Bank deposits 435,000 319,000
NET Subtotal 457,288 337,409
B RABR A3ME A Less: Bank deposits with original
A EBERITIE R maturities over three months (435,000) (319,000)
RekERRE Cash and cash equivalents 22,288 18,409
BERETAMELEEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.FAEALTRE Related party transactions

BRTEATERERNEMTIOBRENEBEA LRSI FREBFBATETHEMELR
R nT

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material related
party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

() THEMRLEE:NBEEALRENREER D XHER ST HECHR LT
Ao Ek - DA RAR M ii‘@.:ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁi°L¢W|§?r“%iﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁ£%@ﬁé—&’%t
AW A BI145EB T (ZE— Lt F 1.024B8 L) E R EEMFEINEREER
T o

Services provided to related parties included registration of land documents, search of
land registers and records, supply of copies of land records and reports on title. The total
revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$114.5 million (2017: HK$102.4 million).
This amount is included in turnover under note 3.

(i) BAEALMIHAMELEEZSRENRSBEEEEM PO T ~ PRITEME
HRG c L EMELSERESEEERE A EMNARS A3,2008 8T (ZE—+%F:
31008 B L) G BMEMEEMFINEERARIET o

Services received from related parties included computer services, accommodation,
central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services amounted
to HK$32 million (2017: HK$31 million). This amount is included in operating costs under
note 4.

iy MBIEATEANBCEEREEETIR EUBENERKNAE28EBT(ZT—+F:
5088 TT) °

Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out projects. The total
cost of these assets amounted to HK$0.28 million (2017: HK$0.59 million).

ii‘@pfﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬁ AIREALTRHEBRBOBWENR I ELALTIRENE BT R IZRE —
BREFHE EHHHHETJJ—(?/\/A%E’JHE%K WEMAR - ERRAERGEEA LRSS - Bl
WIRBH T RKAGE

Charging for services rendered to or received from related parties was on the same basis,
that is, at the rates payable by the general public for services which were also available to
the public or on a full cost recovery basis for services which were available only to related
parties.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. s EmEE Financial risk management
) REBX Investment policy

THEMREEEESUAERRTHNIARKECBRTINEESHFR ERESNETH
FNEREE  -RENAREREZBOAVEEBLEKRER BESREERMEL
sl TRAHMERRS - RENEFESEHRNXBEEFRAENTEF
BEOMEBEL - —RESH  RENBEBRESSKEZH® -

The LRTF maintains a conservative approach on investments in financial assets including
placement with the Exchange Fund, debt securities and bank deposits. Investment
decisions are made according to the guidelines from the Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury, Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other relevant regulations. Invested
debt securities are issued by the Government or quasi-government bodies in Hong Kong
with sound credit ratings and are in general held to maturity.

(il EE=Rk Credit risk
EERBESCRIAN —FETEBETEAMECSRNE—FSZHBREANEAR -

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

THFMREEEESNEERR  TEEORNEBRIRR  RITERBIIEESTFK -
THEMELEEESTARREE YHEERAXKENEEAR -

The LRTF’s credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank deposits and placement
with the Exchange Fund. The LRTF has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

AREWIRER A ERBELAFPASNES -

In respect of debtors, deposits are required from the LRTF’s online services subscribers.
REEREEERR PMIETHEREFEREBHOFERT

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

ERNNERESTFHR  HHEBEERRREE -

For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is considered to be low.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. SR E KR EEw Financial risk management (continued)
(i) 158 & k@ Credit risk (continued)

(i)

EREHERALHEMREEEESNEREEMAAENESEERRBERER
HIRMEE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the LRTF at the end of
the reporting period is equal to their carrying values.

MENE £ b Liquidity risk
RBESRAREE - BEEKBENETESHEERABNETHRR -

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.

BREB(EEEBKOD) tHAMELELCEAEHRESERE  BEAKRTESRE
HiIRE  ABRMRAIRRILE tHEMEEEZESHBREEHERNGRAH
MRDETTFE BEREAFEANESHE UATEREHNRDESTE - Lt
dAfEZEEeNRPEMRRRE WA RDHESARER -

Under the Trading Funds Ordinance, the LRTF is responsible for its own cash
management, including short-term and long-term investment of cash surpluses, subject
to approval by the Financial Secretary. The LRTF’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. As the LRTF has
a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.

F = 2 Paa Interest rate risk
PR B IRE B F) R B BT Sl KRR R - FIERRTE—5 5 AATHFER
@ M mE N RER -

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates.
This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate
risk.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. R AR EEw Financial risk management (continued)
(iv) %UT‘J—LI‘% &) Interest rate risk (continued)

AFEMNEXERESRTANAFESEMSMNXEB KB ER o B0 LI TR
REEESNBTAEFRRELERTR  EMBANERLT LSBT ANQFEE
SRR - AM ARLASBREESRBEEXNAEI T HHIXNEH ST EM
BIREER L EMEESEESHANMEERE

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the LRTF's bank deposits
bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase.
However, as all these financial assets are stated at amortised cost, changes in market
interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the LRTF’s profit and reserves.

HenENXxakEeRIANRKREERESH rh%—f'Jymibﬁﬁ&@E’Jﬂ o T
AMEEEEBARYEANRERENERER AREFEANTIEZESRITAEL
KE/? TN @FﬁﬂIE\‘ °

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The LRTF is not exposed to
material cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments bearing
interest at a floating rate.

SR ke Currency risk
ERRRESHIANAFTEIARKRASRE 2 FHEXY B MK e R

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

THAMEEEETH - REBIXIRNETREMN BT3B EEER

The LRTF’s normal business transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
therefore do not give rise to currency risk.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. SR E KR EEw Financial risk management (continued)
(v) B M@ Currency risk (continued)

(vii)

ERAXTREUMNIRE  ENETEITHSE  tHaMREEESNEEARE
K o

In respect of investments denominated in United States dollars, owing to the linked
exchange rate of the Hong Kong dollar to the United States dollar, the LRTF has a very
low level of currency risk.

EREHERE  AXT /AN ESREERFBASFET(CE—LF :5F87T) - H
BHEREENMTAESRBEIAB T BAL -

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets totalling HK$5,000 (2017: HK$5,000)
were denominated in United States dollars. The remaining financial assets and all financial
liabilities were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

H b B 7% & P Other financial risk
THAMEEEECEARNSF —AETCHIINERES TR E R (M F10ME S Mm/E S
TRAER RNZE—N\F=A=+—"H BRIZZE—+ER_ZT—/\FEHNEXRIEN R
PEOEAES(ZE—+F :50EEY ) MEMEAENE G FERIREBEE M,
BAB208 B T (ZE—EF 26088 7T) °

The LRTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest rate on the
placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every January (note 10). It was
estimated that, as at 31 March 2018, a 50 basis point (2017: 50 basis point) increase/
decrease in the interest rates for 2017 and 2018, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the profit for the year and reserves by HK$3.2 million (2017:
HK$2.6 million).

NEE Fair values
EERTESEEN SR I AN AT EREERSHERANMEREETE - WA X
EmMHEME - BIUABESEMEE T EAAREHERBANTMABETHEAFE -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. In the absence of such quoted market prices,
fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs
based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

BB TAJAEERFEERKBEETRNSBETHRRKRATIEK

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at amounts equal
to or not materially different from their fair values.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22, EAREIE Capital commitments

E-Z-\F=ZA=1t—H 1 HEMELEELHE NHRINAMERRNERNALE:

As at 31 March 2018, the LRTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided for in the
financial statements, as follows:

2018

BEHE R EL Authorised and contracted for 247 1,209
B EMEREL Authorised but not yet
contracted for 206,637 164,537
W Total 206,884 165,746
23. KEH AL Operating lease commitments

=B /\FZB=+—R BB TR R S8 B 4048 R 0 B A TR
EHB@EMT

As at 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:

THB—F Not later than one year 3,293
BB FETBBEAF Later than one year but not

later than five years -
5 Total 3,293

BRI HEAMREEEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. BHETEREZEZ=Z—/\F Possible impact of amendments, new
=B=1+—HIEFEEEKk4E standards and interpretations issued
WHVIEE] %ﬁﬁ,\']&i 1 but not yet effective for the year
REENEE ended 31 March 2018

BEEAYBRREL A BTESHMASERMZEER  HEALZE - HPBHER
BE-T)\FZA=1T-"BULEFERARER  TNRBIERAMEAYERRPREANER
AR NEE ERERNATARE L EMRSELTHR -

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2018 and which have not been early adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the LRTF.

EUATHHR 2%
et HER

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

EEMBRELNEZSHRIer T A —E-)\F$—HA—H
HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” 1 January 2018
BEMBHRELENFEHRIRETFPAEHNZIBA —E-N\F—HA—H
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” 1 January 2018
HFEMBRELEYNFEI6HEIHE] —E-hF—HA—H
HKFRS 16, “Leases” 1 January 2019

THEMREEESEREFE pT %ﬁf‘iﬁ'J EEREEAERARAHREASELNT EET
Al EOMBERERMZFER  MENERRBETANERSHMBRREEATE -

The LRTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. EHEHMENREBE=Z—/\F Possible impact of amendments, new
=B=1+—HIEFEiEKk4E standards and interpretations issued
MEIEET - FTERRAET but not yet effective for the year
BREMNEZEw ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

EBMEREEDFIRE[EL B HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

FEMBRELNEIRMAET LS EFER /T A : Tﬁuu Bl SIAEREE
’“*E&pfgﬁ’]%ﬂﬁm a%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiwﬂéﬁ%ﬁfﬁ?g&ﬁﬁ AENHRE - m—HE &

BB HmMEERNER U BB RS ﬁﬂ'J%SQs)ﬁﬁﬁfﬁi@ﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi%&?ﬁﬁﬂ’\]%ﬁi AR &
mﬂﬁﬁﬁ’]"*ﬁ&.ﬁriﬂ’]%ﬁm ]Iﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%%ﬂ%f\i%,ﬁﬁ‘&#&%ﬁ@,ﬁu RO BRI ES R
BEMSEIENE: (NEEKANE: QUAFEFABRE  ARQUAFEFARLMEE
W o P BREERTERNEBRANEREENSNESREFENE -

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, including
the measurement of impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other
hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39 for
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 contains three primary categories for measuring financial
assets: (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model
and contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

THEAMREEESKBFLRAL ARREBEKAEFENEREESERMNEL
MHEREENFORBZEERBEZANSIEME EXRERAE D ERFELENR

454
= °

The LRTF has assessed that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost will
continue with their respective classifications and measurements under HKFRS 9. There are
no changes to classification and measurement for financial liabilities.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

F Possible impact of amendments, new
4 standards and interpretations issued
> R Al but not yet effective for the year
=R ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

EBUMBRELEDFIRIE A HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (continued)
TE @

AV RELENFIRARSIATHMNEHREEEHERE R E B ST ERFE395 Fr
ArMEEAEBERERLE FIERABRARIHWIMEESEESNELRIBLERIRK - &£
FEHEEEREEREAT RESESEFTEXRLEEESTHEATER R BRERTE
BEEREEERBN  BRAKTEREAEHREEBSEIKATBREEEE - THFfME
EBEESTHERTHEZXFTREER THISERE NANRERE -

HKFRS 9 also introduces a new expected credit loss model to replace the incurred loss
impairment model used in HKAS 39. This new model will apply to the LRTF’s loans and
receivables. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss
event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on the assets and the facts and circumstances. The LRTF has assessed
that no significant impairment losses will be recognised under the current practice or the new
impairment model.

EBMEREERFEI5%E[RE HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
BEEEH2Z2HWA] Customers”
BEEVMERESENEGSRERAERGE SN BRMELNTRARRNRE BT —E
FORATER  UWERERFPEHNZWAAR -BEEFEEHBEHREEDFEI55H  WAKRK
MEREARAZFEZEMIARBEERRMEEESIRESEER - ZER 5| AE
wHEBERT BRERIFBKARLE  ERBETET GHEENBEREEHR IEHUR
FEHEFRGHEFTEER - Tt HAMEEEESTHREMNE LV BRMEERE15R/EISEH
THEAMREEEESN T BERRENEATE -

HKFRS 15 replaces all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs and
establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. According to HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The standard also introduces extensive disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances and key judgements and estimates. The LRTF
has assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
LRTF’s financial statements.
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Bt 75 3R 3K B & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. EWMHERBE_ZF—/\F Possible impact of amendments, new
=HA=+—H tﬁ%ﬁiﬁi standards and interpretations issued

MEIEE - HEB KRBT but not yet effective for the year
BREMNEZEw ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

BBV BEHREZAF165E[HE] HKFRS 16 “Leases”
BEAVBREEANF1FEIMABESHENE17HRIHBEIFNHER T2 ERLAFEM
EMERESIABE—MEAHAASER ERAHEAEZHARBAIRELNAERENSE
ERBE HEEEEENHERI - REFBHBMELERF169T - AHE ABERRI

EFRAEHEEENENNTERAREERRBRESNHEMNEENEEAE - At ABAE
ﬁﬁu/uTﬁFﬁ%éf%?ﬁ%&fﬂia%ﬁﬂ% cFHAEEENMHERGERYIKRENE cFTEEHE
TR AHEEEMNHEE  URNEABAFA BB ESTELIRAEEZERE  RNEREER
MY E REBEASHEMNS  EAVNEREENFRETELEET B ELFE
175REV T AEETE

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” and sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. It introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly,
a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability. The right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease. In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17.

EETEMEREEES
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B 75 3R 3 Bt & (4D
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.BEAME Qﬁ Z—)\fF Possible impact of amendments, new
=A=+—HL $J§‘n’5|€$ standards and interpretations issued
WMHIEET - FTERIKRRER but not yet effective for the year
BREMNZEw ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

EBMBREERE165E[THE] HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

(4&)

BV BREEFIREEFELIHAMEEEESBEN P EAYHEKLEHENAEA
SiE BHEAFSTEREASSIHEEREBEEN  UAFEEHEHARZAKER
NERS HARRE - EMWF28MEE "= —/\&=A=+—H" iﬁﬂ?%ﬁ%%@gi
%ﬁ?"ﬁﬁhﬁE‘J%%%&%fﬂﬁ%@fi‘ﬁmo%%n EZERFSRMTE tHEMELER
TEHEAZHE TS HEMBERREEATE - FTEAUBR_ZE—NF—HA— HIW&
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁigiﬁmﬁ THIMELSEESER BRI BRAEL S RAPATRMNEBE
8l o

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the LRTF's accounting as a lessee of leases for premises which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
leases. As disclosed in note 23, the LRTF had non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$7.4 million as at 31 March 2018. In view of the amount involved, the LRTF expects that the
adoption of this new standard is unlikely to have a significant effect on its financial statements.
The new standard is mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At
this stage, the LRTF does not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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B 45 1
ANNEX |

(@) 2017/18F [ R 5 A& =&
Performance Pledges 2017/18

PR % 15 12 BERRR
(ERRBRESN CERRBEEN
. BALL) BAL)
R 3% 5 2% Performance Actual
Service Standard Target Performance
PR % %8 Bl THEXR i (% meeting (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes  service standard) service standard)
1. BEIHIHFMR 15 (a+b)
Registration of land documents
(8) HBUIXEZRBEEAMMXEEN L (a) 11
B AR
From receipt of an instrument to updating the land
register with the registered instrument SeeNee 1 ang 92 99.6(#2 See Note 2

b)) ZERYEREEFILCHMMNEEER ()4
] A D
Completion of imaging and return of the registered
instrument to the lodging party (See Nete ¥
2. GEHEUSHiInBLM 15 97 100
Counter search of land registers
3. RUIHLFEZBEERLR
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) ZHEELER

Over the counter

(i) TERAEA 15 97 100
Without oversized plans
(i  HZEBKEE 5 97 100

With oversized plans
(b) ZEBHLRFBIE
Order via online services
i FHER
Collection in person

. TEEEEA 1 97 100
Without coloured plans

o [MEEAEGEH 3 97 100
With coloured plans

o [tEBAEAR 5 97 100

With oversized plans
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R & ERRR
(ZARBEEN (ZIRBZED

. BALL) BALk)
R 3% 5 2% Performance Actual
Service Standard Target Performance
P 7% % 7 THEX niE (% meeting (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes  service standard) service standard)
(i) BEFXRABERFAXE
Delivery by post or courier
o TEEEER
Without coloured plans
—  TFeRAIAFE 1 97 100
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeRBEIEEHS 2 97 100
EHARARBEBITE
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays
& public holidays
o [HEEAEERA 3 97 100
With coloured plans
o [HEBKEAR 5 97 100
With oversized plans
4. RHIBLEIAZK
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) TE“ELGHE
Over the counter
(i) T &M 35 97 100
Land registers
i) TEBREHOTEEEER 35 o7 100
Imaged copies without oversized plans
(i) FHEBRENOTEEEER 5 97 100

Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) EBHLRFBTE

Order via online services

i BEER
Collection in person
o T ERM 1 97 100

Land registers

o FEREEER

Imaged copies

- T EBAREA 3 97 100
Without oversized plans
- MEB/AEL 5 97 100

With oversized plans

ERTHAMREEEES
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ANNEX |
PR % 15 12 BERRR
(ERRBREN CERRBEEN
. BALL) BOL)
R 3% 5 2% Performance Actual
Service Standard Target Performance
PR % %8 Bl THEXR 7 iE (% meeting (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes  service standard) service standard)
(i) BEFXRABERFAXE
Delivery by post or courier
. T E M
Land registers
- TFeRAIA R 1 97 100
Orders placed before 6 pm
- TFeRBEIEEHN 2 97 100
EHARARBEBITE
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays
& public holidays
o TEBRARBANTEEEER 3 97 100
Imaged copies without oversized
plans
o MEBKEANFEREERAR 5 97 100
Imaged copies with oversized
plans
5, WHEZMBERR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
(@) HHEAMBEEFMSRF 2 98 100
Approval of MDB applications
b)) ZEIMHBEZEREER 1 98 100
Delivery of MDB data files
6. HERBIMBEARR
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information on
Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
(8 HHERBIMBZAFNBG 2 98 100
Approval of MMIM applications
b)) ZXERBIMBEAFERER 4 98 100
Delivery of MMIM data files
7. EBETHRE
Telephone enquiry services
(@) WAREKIEE WEIB %405 EREE 94 98.3
Voice mail left during office hours Return calls within 40 minutes
after receiving the voice mail
b)) FRORBUINES T—EIEXRTE L108RIEE 94 100
Voice mail left after office hours Return calls before 10 am on

the next working day
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PR 1 & ERRR
(FARBEEN (ZIRBZED

. BALL) BOL)
R 3% 15 2% Performance Actual
Service Standard Target Performance
P 7% % 7 T#ERX niE (% meeting (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes  service standard) service standard)

8. BiiEEMER
Amendment of registered data
@ —RERCBEIMEEENE ELELM 3 93 99.8
Simple cases (i.e. Rectification of land registers
based on Memorial information)

b EEEER 10 92 98.2
Complicated cases
9. ABXNEMWAPLIMIEHEZM 16 (a+h) 92 99.6

Registration of withheld instruments
redelivered for registration
(@) HMKIBRMNEMOPLEMIEEREE (8) 12
AMMXEERAB BT AR
From receipt of a withheld instrument
redelivered for registration to updating the land
register with the registered instrument; and
b EAFEEEEFTEEAMAOXEXRER (b) 4
ZAL
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party

10. REEBEBHF AEREERIEZHRFEN - -
Handling of suggestions/complaints TARNEE - MRDAIHE

ERENGRIEE 8K
NFEE -

Replies to suggestions or
complaints will be sent within
10 calendar days of their
receipt. If this is not possible,
an interim reply will be sent
within this period.

Rl TEEEMERLREPIEEMOXE
Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration
H2: ERRBARRBESEASZ - EAIERHETMONZERARRZALENE

Note 2: The actual performance is measured by the registered documents dispatched to the lodging parties on the last working

day of each month
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(b) 2018/19F E fR & & & (£ M H # 52018F4 1A &)
Performance Pledges 2018/19 (with effect from 1 April 2018)

IR #% 55
(2 B R A AZ LB
Epalsa)
R 7% % Performance
Service Standard Target
Bk % %8 5l IEXR pal:] (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
1. BRI L AR 15 (a+b)
Registration of land documents
@ HBHURIXEERBEEAMOXEEFLHHE (@) 11
SRE R
From receipt of an instrument to updating
the land register with the registered instrument 92

(See Note 1); and
) TRFEREBEFITEETMHOXEXER (o) 4
2 A D
Completion of imaging and return of the registered
instrument to the lodging party (e Note ¥
2, EHEUERLitEZM 15 97
Counter search of land registers
3. RHIHLHEFEEERXR
Supply of imaged copies of land records
(a) HEHELEHK

Over the counter

() FEBAKEL 15 97
Without oversized plans
()  FE@KE R 5 97

With oversized plans
(b) ZBBHALRHBTE

Order via online services

() BHEER
Collection in person
e TEEEEDAR 1 97
Without coloured plans
e [EEEEA 3 97
With coloured plans
o i@ AEE 5 97

With oversized plans
(i) HHFHHEBRERIREE
Delivery by post or courier
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R R
CGE 2| IR 1R 2R

ABotk)
R 7% 12 2 Performance
Service Standard Target
AR 7% 38 5l T{EX o iE (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
e TEEEEA
Without coloured plans
—  TFeEAIA] B 1 97
Orders placed before 6 pm
—  TFeREEEN 2 97
EHARARREITE
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays &
public holidays
e [EEEeEBA 3 97
With coloured plans
o i@ AREE 5 97
With oversized plans
4. RHEIHLHERFR
Supply of certified copies of land records
(a) TEMEHE
Over the counter
() LTHEZM 35 97
Land registers
(i) AEEAE RS G&ERIE AR 35 97
Imaged copies without oversized plans
(i) BT i@ RE R R EIRE AR 5 97

Imaged copies with oversized plans
(b) ZBBEALRHBE

Order via online services

) BHER
Collection in person
. + b & 5 1 97

Land registers

s FHRERBAIR

Imaged copies

- TEBXESHR 3 97
Without oversized plans
— MEBEAER 5 97

With oversized plans
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ANNEX |
IR #% 15
CERRBIZED
Botk)
R 7% % Performance
Service Standard Target
PR % %8 5l IEXR pal ] (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)
(i) BHFIHBERQRER
Delivery by post or courier
o  tHERM
Land registers
—  TFeRATA 1 97
Orders placed before 6 pm
— THeREIELEN 2 97
EHBARARBEHGE
Orders placed after 6 pm
or on Saturdays, Sundays &
public holidays
o  TEBAKRKBANZEEEEA 3 97
Imaged copies without oversized plans
e MEMAAKBANZEREEREERR 5 97
Imaged copies with oversized plans
5. HEZMWEARR
Sale of Memorial Day Book (MDB)
@ HHFAMBEBFORE 2 98
Approval of MDB applications
b)) ZFEAMBEAFZERESR 1 98
Delivery of MDB data files
6. HERBEMBEAR
Sale of Monthly Memorial Information on
Mortgage Transactions (MMIM)
@ #HHRBETIMBEATHRSR 2 98
Approval of MMIM applications
(b)) ZFERIBIMBEAZERER 4 98
Delivery of MMIM data files
7. BREEARY
Telephone enquiry services
@ MWAKEWIIES WE B S %400 EADE 94
Voice mail left during office hours Return calls within 40 minutes
after receiving the voice mail
) FWMAKEWINES T—EI{EXRT L0 AT B 94
Voice mail left after office hours Return calls before 10 am on

the next working day
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R R
CGE 2| IR 1R 2R

ABotk)
R 7% 12 2 Performance
Service Standard Target
AR 7% 38 5l T{EX o iE (% meeting
Service Type Working Day(s) Minutes service standard)

8. BiiTEEMEHR
Amendment of registered data
@ —RERGEMRETMEHZENE e 3 94
Simple Cases (i.e. Rectification of land
registers based on Memorial information)

(b) BB 10 93
Complicated Cases
9. RBRANAEMBOPLEMIEREZM 16 (a+b) 92

Registration of withheld instruments
redelivered for registration
@ ARIBRMNEMOHREFMXERRED T (@) 12
)X EF 3 &M ARk
From receipt of a withheld instrument
redelivered for registration to updating the land
register with the registered instrument; and
b)) TERFEERERFITHLETMHXEFZXDR (o) 4
ZAL
Completion of imaging and return of the
registered instrument to the lodging party
10. REES REF RNg WS EZ A IRFRD —
Handling of suggestions/complaints TRAZE - MRTAT8E
ERMAHFRIEE BLE8HET
H#E7E o
Replies to suggestions or
complaints will be sent within
10 calendar days of their receipt.
If this is not possible, an interim
reply will be sent within
this period.

g1 TEEREMEERNREPIEEMEOXXE
Note 1: Excluding complicated cases and instruments withheld from registration
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ANNEX I

(@) 201718FE Lt HEMEBHSE KR EZEESZEE
Membership of the Land Registry Joint Standing Committee
2017/18

* /& Chairperson

TR REKKL Ms Doris CHEUNG Mei-chu
The Land Registry

ZE Members

+ i s A R ARBELZ T Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry TG St & Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung
(£ A A B2018F14) (With effect from January 2018)
FRLL Ms Vivian LEE Kwan
RERELL Ms Doris WU Lai-kwan
(Bt 220184 1H) (Until January 2018)
EEEME MABRZ+ Ms Emily LAM Yuet-ming
The Law Society of Hong Kong BEBLE Mr Billy MA Wah-yan
mikER L Ms Sylvia SIU Wing-yee
HBEREE Mr Terry YEUNG Po-lam

WE Secretary

T MR REEZTE Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen
The Land Registry

F 3R ANNUAL REPORT
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Membership of the Land Registry Customer Liaison Group
(Private Sector) 2017/18

*/E Chairperson

T MR ARBERL Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
The Land Registry

ZE Members

EEGTMAE BrHiE Mr Sammy CHOI Tze-kit
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public #7835 % + Ms Helen KUN Yun-fong
Accountants TS Mr Thomas LEE Ho-yiu
EEMERERLES BRIA A 5 & Mr CHAN Ping-choi

Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association

EEMEREZEXHSER AT & ZZB A Mr Franklin AU Yick-ming
Society of Hong Kong Real Estate
Agents Limited

ERRITAE E K R&Z =+ Ms Christine LO Wing-yun

The Hong Kong Association of Banks = 72 & 5 £ Mr Andy NG Hak-chung
Bzt Ms Daisy WU Sim-hing

EEAEMEE i kk ke Mr CHIU Kam-kuen

The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors BfFEE B+ Dr Conrad TANG Hong-wai

ERTHAMREEEES
THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG
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(b) 2017/18FE L+ FMEFFEEZ N EH (R EKB)ZEE @

Membership of the Land Registry Customer Liaison Group
(Private Sector) 2017/18 (continued)

TR
The Land Registry

BEEMEg
The Law Society of Hong Kong

W E Secretary

bz uEE R if
The Land Registry

PRER 2+

(Bt 220174124)
ERYL
Mg+
TR L
TEBELL
TRBELE
BB E

(£ HH AB2018F14)
4+
BB E
REELEE

BIEELZL

BEL UL
ERTEE

IEE L+
MEELZ L
REMETE

(£ HHAE2017F6H)
BEBEL

(B Z2017464)

£l g

Ms Peggy CHAN

(Until December 2017)

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan
Mrs LAM TSE Shuk-yee
Ms Vivian LEE Kwan

Miss Fion LI Fong-kwan
Mr PANG Ka-fai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu
(With effect from January 2018)
Ms Ada TSE Siu-hing

Mr Francis WAN

Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen

Ms AU Kin-man

Ms Stella AU Man-chun

Mr Alson CHAI

Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
Ms LAM Man-yee

Mr LEONG Chi-wai

(With effect from June 2017)
Ms Annkie WONG Yee-mei
(Until June 2017)

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man
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Membership of the Land Registry Customer Liaison Group

(Public Sector) 2017/18

F & Chairperson

& EE A
The Land Registry

ZEB Members

BEBAERE
Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department

EFE
Buildings Department

BB

Customs and Excise Department

# A

Department of Justice

RIGRESE

Environmental Protection Department

RYMREFEE
Food and Environmental Hygiene
Department

BREXE

Government Property Agency

RBEHBEE

Home Affairs Department

EAEEHE
Hong Kong Housing Society

BABEBRR

Hong Kong Police Force

ERTHAMREEEES

TRBER L

HEMmEt

BAELT
R

FEXEE
REBEE
R Lt
izt
BEMLt

FEBEE

X R L

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee

Ms NGAR Yuen-ngor

Miss Stephanie AU Yuen-ling
Mr Newman CHENG Kai-fat
Mr David LEE Kin-man

Mr Joseph CHAN Cho-chee

Miss Charlene CHEUNG Chung-ling
Miss Veronica WOO

Miss Anissa YANG King-shan

Mr Calvin KWOK Wai-chung

Ms Ann MUI Ching-man

Ms Kathy FOK Po-wa

Ms Joey WONG

Ms Fanny CHAN Lai-kuen

Ms Wendy TAM Pui-fong
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(c) 2017/18FEE L FMEEZFFBEB N A (RERB)ZEw

Membership of the Land Registry Customer Liaison Group
(PUblIC SeCtOr) 2017/18 (continued)

FEZ

Housing Department

BRBERAE
Independent Commission Against
Corruption

MR
Inland Revenue Department

K BE
Lands Department

BWEEEE

Official Receiver’s Office

REE

Planning Department

EMYEMEESE

Rating and Valuation Department

TR
The Land Registry

W E Secretary

& EE A
The Land Registry

MRART L
JE 8 e
FHELL
EERE
FTamis
RE@EE
BERLE
BRREL -
REW L
BEMREL

RikEX T

B IiK 48 75

PR B3 27 £

(8 F20174E12H)

ERYLL

MREDRE 22 £

FHLL
FRERL
TREBERE
EIERE KL

(434 H B B2018414)

Eil Rt
k) ¥
REZEE

EIE 3 g

Mrs Charis CHENG LAl Ming-yung
Mr CHOW Kim-sing
Ms LEE Yin-ling

Mr LAU Chi-fai
Mr Paul WONG Shun-chung

Mr CHU Chi-keung
Mr KWAN Ho-tai

Miss Junie CHAN Suk-wah

Miss Sanita LEUNG
Ms Virgina WONG

Ms CHEUNG Ling-chi

Mr Calvin AU Chun-yiu

Ms Peggy CHAN

(Until December 2017)

Ms Emily FOK Wai-kan
Mrs LAM TSE Shuk-yee
Ms Vivian LEE Kwan

Miss Fion LI Fong-kwan
Mr PANG Ka-fai

Mr Kenneth POON Fai-yiu
(With effect from January 2018)
Ms Ada TSE Siu-hing

Mr Francis WAN

Mr Isaac YUEN Wai-chuen

Ms Eva LAU Siu-man

F 3R ANNUAL REPORT
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(d) 2017/18FE(L W EEKH)BEZTESEE

Membership of the Land Titles Ordinance Steering Committee

2017/18
F & Chairperson

& EE A
The Land Registry

ZEB Members

HEEZES

Consumer Council

Z 7]

Department of Justice

BERE
Development Bureau

WERBEER
Estate Agents Authority

AR E R

Heung Yee Kuk New Territories

ERRIBESFERAF
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited

g EE
Lands Department

ERBRITRE
The Hong Kong Association of Banks

ERTHAMREEEES

REKRL L

B Sedun

(£ HRAE2017F8H)
PR B I

(B Z2017454)

FaBAE

meERL

2IREL L

(B Z20174104)
RiEBLT

(£ AR 5E2017F114)

MEE XL

MREEL L

HEERE T

(B Z2017%F445)
THERE

(£ HRBE2017F44)

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Ms Doris CHEUNG Mei-chu

Ms Terese AU-YEUNG Kar-wai
(With effect from August 2017)
Ms Shirley CHAN Sze-ki

(Until May 2017)

Mr Simon LEE Pak-sing

Mr Maurice LOO Kam-wah

Ms Eva LAU Suk-fun

(Until October 2017)

Ms Juliet LEUNG Tak-lai

(With effect from November 2017)

Mr Alfred LAM Kwok-cheong

Ms Feliciana CHEUNG Siu-wai

Mrs Maria LAM LEUNG Man-wah

Mr Ryan FUNG Yuk-lung
(Until April 2017)

Mr Teddy WONG Wai-hin
(With effect from April 2017)
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(d) 2017/18FE( L WX EKF)NEEZTESZTEw

Membership of the Land Titles Ordinance Steering Committee

201 7/1 8 (continued)

4 3 R FRREZL
The Land Registry B A
(£ X HE A2018%F14)
RBEZL
(B Z2018414)
BEEME BokFLE

The Law Society of Hong Kong

BARMWERRES BRERRLE
The Real Estate Developers
Association of Hong Kong

W E Secretary

=+ A SEELL
The Land Registry

Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung
(With effect from January 2018)
Ms Doris WU Lai-kwan

(Until January 2018)

Mr Eric John DAVISON

Mr Louis LOONG Hon-biu

Miss Shirley KO Sin-man
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Membership of the Land Titles Ordinance Review Committee

2017/18
F & Chairperson

TR
The Land Registry

ZE Members

=+ EE A
The Land Registry

ERE
Development Bureau

ik EECEELBANBLIESR)
Lands Department (Legal Advisory
and Conveyancing Office)

e

Department of Justice

BAEEME
The Law Society of Hong Kong

BREARENE

Hong Kong Bar Association

W E Secretary

=+ EE
The Land Registry

ERTHAMREEEES

AFES R A

(4 5% HH B2018414)

REBLL

(B F20184¢15)

HTRBERL
BXELL
FEERL

EIEALTL
hEgEL L

M#ELL
MREFELZL

B {3 22 +
FaErt
B8zt

ERBERE
BREELE

BXERE

BEHEE/

ERM&Z L

(REZE)

THE LAND REGISTRY TRADING FUND HONG KONG

Mr Joseph HUI Kwok-hung
(With effect from January 2018)
Ms Doris WU Lai-kwan

(Until January 2018)

Mrs Amy FONG NG Suk-yee
Ms Queenie KIU Mei-kam
Ms Shirley LEE Po-kwan

Ms Jasmine CHOI Suet-yung
Miss Nettie NG Kai-ting

Ms Valerie KWAN Ming-sin
Mrs Maria LAM LEUNG Man-wah

Miss Joyce CHAN Pui-shan
Ms Frances HUI Hang-ka
Ms Francoise LAM See-man

Mr Peter AHERNE

Mr Andy NGAN On-tak

Ms Judith SIHOMBING

Mr Raymond WONG Man-wa

Mr Malcolm MERRY/

Ms Sara TONG
(alternate members)

Ms Queenie KIU Mei-kam
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